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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

o » O » O »

Yes.

You iequest any foliow—up investigation in the case?
Yes, ma'am. |

You would request any follow-up forensic testing?
Yes.

You would decide if you should try to get more search

warrants or request them?

A

Q

Yes, ma'am.

You would set up or, you know, either do your own .

follow-up interviews or send somebody else? -

A

0
jacket found --

That's correct.

And as lead detective, if there had been a.camo

A Yes, ma'am.

Q -- it's your responsibility to- make sure it gets
. tested? |
A We tried to find one. _

Q Okay. And just to be clear, you had watched the

video, right?

A

Q

A .

Q

Yes, I did.
Many times?
Yes.

Now Rashawn Bradle& was oﬁ Bonds Avenue when the

shooting happened?

A

Yes.
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(ORI O N ©)

For sure?

Yes.
~Where He was you}re not exactly sure?

From that video I am.

Well, you don't know exactly at what time the

shOotihg happened because .the shooting's not on the tape?

A That's the only part that's not.

Q Okay. Well, he wasn't interviewed for a week, right?
A . That's correct. |
Q So there was no way for you all to do gun shot .

' residue ‘tests on him? S .
'A . That's correct.

Q And so we don't know what the results would have

been?

A - There waé no reason to do-it on him.

Q Well,‘you couldn't do'it even if you had wanted ﬁo?
A Correct. |

Q And you watched the video the day of?

A Yes.

Q- All right. Now Antonio didn't ‘get gun shot residue

testing done on him either becauseAyou all didn't talk to
him for a wéek? )

A There was no need to also.

Q But you all didn't talk to him for a week?

A Correct.
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

O A O R C

Q And now Mr. Washington, you all didn't do any testing
on him either?

I. did not.

"Well, you're had the lead detective?

Correct.

You never told anybody to? .

No.

And to your -knowledge, was a bike ever located on

‘Bonds Avenue?

A Not to my knowledge.

Q You didn't instruct anybody to-take photographs-

- inside of the house on West Surrey during the search of
‘the home?

‘A That's correct. I was at ‘the precinct.

Q But you didn't tell anybody?

A No, ma'ém.

Q And when y'all went looking for the gun in the field,
y'all didn't photograph that either?

A No, we did not. It was very dark.

Q Okay. But y'all have the ability to take pictures?

A Yes. If we had found something we would have stopped

and we would have took pictures of it.
o) And T guess you never searched Dagone Lance's home --
A No, we did not.

Q —- to look for the gun there?
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

655

A - No, we did not.

Q Y'all didn't look at Rashawn Bradley's home?

A No, we did not. | h

Q Or Antonio Smalls-Heyward?

A No.

Q - All thrge of them got charged, though?

A ' Except for Heyward.

Q"  You were going to charge him originally --

A Yes, ma'am, I wés. '

Q —-— but then;they didn't.proSecuté him?

A That's correct.

Q - You chérged‘all three of them with accessory after
the fact?

A ' Except for Heyward. I didn't -- there was no

warrant.
Q But you were going to?
A I was going to, yes, ma'am.

Q ° But lance and Bradley both got charged with accessory
after the fact? |

A Yes. We went off of -- actually, the reason why we
didn't check their houses is because we went off

Mr. Green's stateﬁent that he threw the gun in the field.
Q Okay. So you went off his statement completely?

A Pretty much.

Q So let me clarify. You believe him that he threw the
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

gun in a field?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q But you didn't believe that he got the gun from under
a house?

A No, ma'am, I didn't.

Q - Okay. So you believed one part‘but not the other?

A Well, after viewing the video numerous times, |

although he does go off camera for a very brief amount of

~time, I believe it was the right thing.

Q . Okay. So are you saying that you thought that the
gun came from Lance to Derell?
A T don't know where the gun came from, ma'am.
Q - Okay. Let's shift gears.
At some point there was a black hoodie taken
from West Surrey?
A That's correct.
Q -And I think there;s no documentation of that éver

going to SLED?

A Not to my knowledge, no.

Q And there's really no documentation that it ever even
got tested?

A I believe Sergeant Hallman did that test on it, the
presumptive test.

Q And he testified it tested negative?

A That's correct.
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ORI O S © - G N )

Now do you remember testifying in February --
Yes, ma'am, I do.
~- of 2010?:
Yes.
At a hearing?,
Yes, I did.
. You were under oath?
Yeé.
' And at that hearing you said that Derell Gréen's
clothing"testéd positive for gun shot residue?
Yes, ma'am;
That wasn't true?
That was an error on my part. I read the —

It wasn't true?

- O 2 &

It was én efror. It was -- I'm not lying. It was an
error on my part. |

Q Okay. Error, lying, .it wasn't true, though,‘right?

A Correct.

Q His clOthing didn't test‘positive'for gun.shét

residue?

A Yes, ma'am, it did not.

Q Now the first statement that he gave would have-

happened at 3:457
A Yes, ma'am.

Q and the second would have happened at 7:45 according
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich
658

to these statements?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q ° Four hours in between?
A~ Yes, ma'am.

Q Okay. Do you remember testiinng in August of last
year? |

A At the‘preliminary I think it was?

Q You testified at a hearing?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And at that time you said that the statements came

right after each other?

A 'Pretty much, yes, ma'am.

Q0 But that's not true?

A Yes, ma'am. -
Q You also are responsible for doing, I think it's

called, a prosecutive summary report?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And you kind of summarize what the evidence is in
there?

A .Yes, ma'am.

Q And in that report, you put that Derell Green wrote
two stateménts implicating himself?

A Yes, ma'am. |

Q But that's not true?

A Yes, ma'am. That's a mistake on my part.
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' 659

© » 0o » O » O » O B

Okay. But it's not true?
Yes, ma'am.

And he gave only one statement implicating himself?

L O A O

Yes, ma'am. Well, actually he did implicate himself
because he(did pﬁt himself on Bonds Avenue in the first

statement.

Q That's. not saying he did the shqoting?

A Correct.

0 I ﬁeah a lot of people said that they were on Bonds
iAvenue. |

A Yes, ma'am.

Q  You didn't Say that they implicated themsélﬁes?
A‘ Correct. “ :

Q I thiﬁk'yoﬁ testified previously that Derell told you
he burned the camo jacket?

Yes, ma'am.

That's not anywhere in a statement, though?

No, ma'am. |

It's not anYWhere in a police report?

No.

And you guys never retrieved the Jjacket?

We did not.

You never tested it?

No, ma'am.

And do you remember testifying previously --
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

660
A Yes.
Q —- that there was a camo.jackef at thelhouse and that
you all just didn't take it?
A I was told there was one there by one of the
~ detectives inside the house, but it was not taken.
Q Okay. So you were told that it was there but not
taken? .
A ° Yes, ma'am.
Q And you didn't go back to get it?
A I was told it wasn't related. I don't remember who

- told me that, but they told me it wasn't related to the

case.

Q Okay. So a camo. jacket was found at this
l4-year-o0ld's house?

Yes, ma'am.

That you say he was wearing --

Yes, ma'am.

- a camb jacket --

Yes, ma'qm.

—-- and you all didn't go back and get it?
They didn't get it, no, ma'am.

Weli, you're the lead detective.

" Yes, ma'am.

‘oI o N O N DR © N - O R o

So if anybody's responsible for gding to back get it

or making sure somebody gets it, it's you?
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross—-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich
: 661

Yes, ma'am.

And you all didn't go back?

No, we did not. . N

And y'all didn't test anything?

No, ma'am. |

Y'all sent no clothing to be tested?

No, ma'am.

ORI ORI A o I 2 ©

And it's your responsibility,. if you want the
victim's_clothing tested, to send it?

A - Yes, ma'am.

Q0 You were part of the interview with Antonio?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q . And you knew he was. saying that Dagone Lance passed
something to Derell Green?

A That's correct.

0 And you were part of the interview with Rashawn
Bradley?

A That's correct.

Q And you were hére when he séid Dagone Lance passed

something to Derell Green?

A Yes, ma'am. -

Q And then Daqgone Lance told him to go back?

A 'Yes, ma'am.

Q But‘you didn't believe them?

A You can see them going back, but I couldn't tell what
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

662
he said.
Q Well, you didn't believe that Dagone Lance passed -
something to Derell Green?

A There's no evidence of that. Just what they said in
their statements. _

Q Okay.  Well, if you had believed tth, why are we
here? |

A ‘T believe their statements, but —-

Q - Okay. They were here. Your theory is that Daqgone
Lance gave Derell Green a gun?

A My theory, yes, ma'am. ‘

Q ‘Okay. But you must noé have believed them about the
gun?

A I don't understand what you're trying to say.

Q You either believed them or didn't believe them about
the gun being passed to Derell Green from Dagone Lance.
.That was a theory. It could have happened.

Okay. Do you believe them or didn't believe them?

I believe them.

Okay. You believe them?

Yes, ma'am.

O N - O T © B

Well, I don't get that because if you believed them,

you would have charged Dagone Lance with murder;

‘A Yes, ma'am.

0 Which you didn't?
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Cross-Exam by Ms. Ehrlich

663
A No, we did not.
Q You charged him with accessory after?
A | Yes, we did.
Q © And he got probation.
A I guess so. I don't know whathhelgot.
Q | Well, would it surprise you to know'he got ‘probation?
A No. |
o) And he's out in the community?
A No. | _ |
M. EHRLICH: Court's indulgence. .
kPause.) |
‘MS. EHRLICH: I don't have any further
queétions. | h

- THE COURT: Any redirect?
MR. DURANT: I Jjust have dne.
| REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. DURANT: | |
Q On cross-examination, Ms. Ehrlich -asked you about his
second statement, how many times he shot the gun and you
replied four or five times.
A That's correct.
Q The fact of the matter is he said, "I don't know,
maybe four or five times." Is that correct?
A Yes.

MR. DURANT: Thank you. I have nothing further.
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ALAN KRAMITZ - Redirect Exam by Mr. DuRant
' 664

THE COURT: Any recross?

MS. EHRLICH: No, sir.

THE COURT: Detective, you may step down. Thank
you very muéh. |

THE WITNESS: Thank you, sir.

THE COURT: .Call your next witness, please.

MR. DURANT: Your Honor, we need to call a
witness out of order, if you please. We'd call John
Roberts from SLED.

JOHN ROBERTS, after being duly'sworn, téstifiéd
as follows: _

THE CLERK: Thank you, sir. If you would take
your‘seat. | |

Sir, if you‘would state your first and ié§t
name,. spelling your last for the record, please.»'

THE WITNESS: John Roberts, R-0O-B-E-R-T-S.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

~

BY MR. DURANT:

Q Good morning, Mr. Roberts.

A Géod morning.
Q Could you tell our jury where you're employed?
A I work for the South Carolina Law Enforcement

Division, more commonly called SLED, in the Trace Evidence
Department of the Forensic Services Unit.

Q Okay. How long have you'been with SLED?
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JOHN ROBERTS - Direct Exam by Mr. DuRant
665

- O - © B

Six and a half years.

And‘how long in trace examination?

Six and a half years.

And what 1is trace examination? -

Trace examinatibn is the analysis of evidence thét
yourgenerally cannot see with your naked eye.

In our department. we do gun shbtvresidue, aréon,
flammable analysis, paint, glasé, fibers, duct tape, bank
dyé packs énd explosives; :

Q . Okéy, ‘And cOﬁld'you §lease relate to our jufy what
education and training you've had in the area of trace
examination.

A Yes, sir. I have a bachelor's of science degree in

‘chemistry from Texas A&M Corpus Cristi.

After“I moved here .I got my job at SLED and I
went through outr in-house training program, fir$t in gun
shot residue, second in flammable liquids analysis, then
in bank dye packs and now through éxplosiveS; | |

Our fraining conéists of theitraineé basically
helping a court-qualified analyst in theif case work.

In my case I worked directly ﬁnder my lieutenant
who had been there for, at the time, about 13 or 14 years
and had been doing gun shot reéidue for the most part of
that 14 years. I helped him with his case work. I

learned how to use the instrumentation, how to generate'
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the data off the instrumentation, and then how to write up
reports.
After six months or so, I was given a case of my

own to work and then I was examlned and Cross- -examined by

. the other court-qualified people in my department, after

which I was basically passed to take my own gun shot
residue cases, which I have been doing since 2006.

Q Okay. And you are, of course, certified by SLED to
conduct gun shot residue analysis; is that correct?

A Yes, sir, -I am. |

Q And how many gun shot anelysis tests have you

performed while you've been at SLED?

A It's probably approaching the thousands.

Q And. have you ever been qualified as an expert in the
area of gun shor residue analysis?

A - Yes, sir.

Q On how many occasions?

A I've been qualified in state court 45 times, probably-
out of that, 43 in gun shet residue.

MR. DURANT: Okay. Your Honor, at this time we

would offer Mr. Roberts as an expert in trace analysis.

THE COURT: Any objection, any questions?
MS. PROCTOR: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Okay. The Court so finds.:

MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honor.
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BY MR. DURANT:

Q Could you tell our jury just in éeneral terms what
gun shot residue is?

A Yes, sir.

Gun shot residue is the term that we give to the
pa;ticles that are ejected out of a firearm when you shoot
it. It won't come out of a BB gun because that doesn't
have a primer. What we're iooking at is metals that are
ejected from the primei of a bullet.

The primer of the bullet ié basically the silver
center cap on the back end df a cartridge-casé. It's what
sets off the main powder charge, forces the bullet down
the muzzle and out towards the target.

The metals we look for are lead, barium éﬁd
antimony, and we look for specific concentrations on four
different areas that a gun shot residue is taken from. We
look for them on the palms and backs of both hands.

We use different instrumentation to find out the

metals, and that's what gun shot residue is.

Q Okay. And how does gun shot residue get on someone?
A There's three main ways to-get gun shot residue on
you.

First of all, by firing a gun. If I go out to
the shooting range later this afternoon and I shoot my gun

five or six times, I'll have gun shot residue on my hands.
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The other way is simply by handling a weapon
that's been fired. When I go back out to my car and I get

my gun out of my car, put it on my hip, I will have gun

‘shot residue on my hands because I fired that weapon.

And the other way is by being near it when it
goes off. If I take my wife to the range and she just

stands there and watches me shoot, because I like to shoot

~all the ammo up, then she could get gun shot residue on

her just by being near the gun when it goes off.

Q And(how=long doed gun shot .residue remain on a living
humén being?

A Our protocol at SLED is six hours. We've found that
somebody just shooting a firearm and then doing éimple

clerical duties, working on your computer,'writing up

' reports; your body will either Wipe.it off simply by

touching something or will absorb it in the manner of six
hours. So after six hours we won't even accept a gun shot
residue kit.

0 And you tested, I believe, several in this case.

Were ali of those within the six-hour period?

A Yes, sir, that's correct.

0 How -about on someone that has passed away, ddés that
six-hour limit apply to them?

A No, sir, it doesn't. Because they're deceased and

their heart stops beating and they're not breathing




518

10 -

11

12
13

,14 |

15
16

17

18

19

20

21

22
23
24

25

JOHN ROBERTS - Direct Exam by Mr. DuRant
669

anymore, the material doesn't get absorbed into their
skin. So it will stay on whatever area it happens to bev
on until itfs~removed.

o) Okay. And the gun shot residue analysis you

'generally do at SLED are from these kits that ybu'all44

provide to- law enforcement agencies; is that correct?

A Yes, sir, that's correct}‘

| Q  And that's pretty much hanvds’>

.A. - It's palms and backs of. both hands

Q. We talked a llttle bit about how you get GSR ‘on you

:How do you get it off of you?

A TIt's fairly. easy,t0>remove.. It's almost as éasy to

remove as it is to»get on you. | | |
If anybody's ever baked and.ﬁut flour on your

hands, you~put'yéur_hands under the :unning water and that

flour is gone.. GSR is a' lot like that. .You can wash it

off with water very simply. . If you wipe your hands on

your pants, it goes on your pants. - If. you touch

doorknobs, it goes to- the dbbrknobs. ~It'SVery eaéy to

transfer from your hands to Somethiﬁg else. And it

doesn't take long for ali those little transfers to add up

. and all of a sudden you don't have any gun shot residue on
‘you at all. '

. Q Okay. Basically what you're looking for is a certain

threshold of concentration; is that correct?
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A Yes, sir, that's correct.
Q How about gloves?
A Gloves will keep it from getting on your hands as

long as they're fairly solid, like leather gloves. If
you've got a good pair of leather gloves, the gun shot

residue will get on the gloves and‘not your hands. If you

have mesh, cheap mesh gloves, it could go through the mesh

and get on yqﬁr hands, but it's more than likely going to
get on the gloves.

Q Okay.. And with regard tb this case, I'm going'to
hand you what's previously been marked as State's Exhibits

30, 31, and 32, previously identified as gun shot residue

~ kits obtained from Derell Green and Taron Maybank and I
- believe Dagone Lance, and I'd ask if you recognize those
Jitems.

" A Yes, sir, I do.

Q And how do you -- why do you recognize them?

A These are the remnants of gun shot residue kits that

agencies submit to us.

This one is State's EXhibit 30 from Larry Taron
Maybank.

When it comes into our department, wé'll put an
evidence tag on it. It has our lab number and a bar code
and the item number that iﬁ's submitted undér.

And in ‘this case, it's my item number four.

-~
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It's initialed by our technician who preps the ‘case, and
it's initialed by me Qho runs the case, and that's how I
recognize it.

| All three of these have any initials on them and
our lab number and item numbers on them.

Q Okay. And with regard -- let's start -with State's

'Exhibit No. 30. Who is that? I believe -- was that

Mr. Maybank's kit?

A Yes, sir. Nén 30 is Larry Taron Maybank.

Q Okay. And did you perform an analysis on the gun
shot residue kit submitted on the victim, Larry Taron

Maybank?

A . Yes, sir, I did.

Q And what were your results regarding your analysis of
the sample from Mr. Maybank? !. A

A On the samples that we analyzed, which wére the right
palm and the,right back of the hand and -the left palm and
the left back of the hand,:the quantities of metals that
we found did not‘indicate the presehce of gun shot
fesidue.

Q Okay. How about State's Exhibit No. 31, whose kit is
that?

A No. 31 was from Derell Jamal Green. That's what it's
lisﬁed on on the GSR kit. |

Q Okay. And did you perform an analysis of that GSR
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kit?
A T did.
Q: And what were the results of ydur analysis of State's

Exhibit No. 31, the kit obtained from Derell Green?

A On the right palm, right back, left palm and left
bdack, the guantities of metals found did not indicate the .
presence of gun shot residue.

| Okay. And how about 32, whose kit was that?

Dagone Jeromé Lance.

And likewise did you perform analysis on that sample?
Yes, sir, I did.

‘And the results?

On the right palm, the right back, the left palm‘and
the lefﬁ'back, the quantities of metals found did not
indicate the presence of gun shot residue.

Q "So basically all three of those samples were

negative?
A Yes, sir.
Q Does. that mean necessarily that the defendant in this

case, Derell Green, did not fire a weapon?

A No, sir, it doesn't.

Q And why not?

A Like I said, gun shot residue is easy to remove. If

there's a significant time lapse between the tinme of-the.

suspected shooting and the time that the kit's collected,
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it could have been rubbed off.

MR. DURANT: Okay. Your Honor, at this time we
would offer State's 30, 31, and 32 into evidence.

THE COURT: Any objection?

MS. PROCTOR: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. . Admitted without

objection.

(WHEREUPON, STATE'S Exhibits Nos. 30, 31, 32

were admitted into evidence.)

- MR. DURANT: If you'd please answér any .

" questions Ms. Proctor may have for you.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
| CROSS~EXAMINATTON | -

BY MS.. PROCTOR:

Q Are you Officer Roberts or Mr. Roberts?
A -Mr. Roberfs.is fine.
0 Mr. Roberts, when you were talking about when you

fired your gun at the practice range,-sometimes soot got

‘on your wife's clothes, correct?

A Yes, ma'am, it can.
Q And you can also get soot from gun powder. residue, I

guess, from wiping your hands on your pants; is that true?

A Yes, ma'am.
0 Now are you ever sent clothing, say a victim's
clothing?
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A We get sent wvictim's clothiﬁg; however, we don't do

victim's clothing for gun shot residue.

Q Okay. But do you ever look —-- do you ever test,
since you said you're also -- do you ever test any
firearms?

A I don't test firearms.

Q  Okay. So you wouldn't be able to do any -- to tell
how close, say, the distance of a gunshot was by soot on
clothes? V

A' That I do.

Q QOkay. So if you have,, say, a victim's‘clothing with
the bullet hole with soot on it, would that sometimes help
to be able to tell how far the shooter‘wés from him?

A It can; however, to do that test, I have to have
obviously the victim's clothing, I have to have the
firearm that was used, and I ha&e to have enough
ammunition coming from that firearm to test. I can't —-
you can't fihd, let's say, a revolver -- .

Q Correct. ,

A ~— like a .38 that only has five shots. If there are
four shots fired and there's only one cartridge left in
that firearm, I can't do the test because I don't have
enough ammunition and it has to be from that firearm. You
can't find a firearm with four missing shots and then find

a box of bullets with 50 in it and say, oh, this is the
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box. I can't -- I won't do that because 1 have to have
the exact ammo, the ammunition that was fired in the
incident.

Q Okay. But.in this case you weren't sent any
_ glothing?
A No, ma'am, I was not.
Q Were you sent a camo jacket?
A No, ma'am. |
Q Or a blaék‘hooded sweatshirt?
A No, ma'am. | |
Q .Or any khaki pants?
A No, ma'am. |
Q *Ana you stated that, you know, if. somebody washes
their'hands, that the gun powder residue is gone?
A ‘Yes, ma'am, fhat’s correct.
Q Bﬁt'if somebody's standing next to you, as you said,

and you shoot a gun, some of the gun pbwder residue can go
on their cldthing?
A | Yes, ma'am, it can.

MS. PROCTOR: I have no further questions.-

THE COURT: Any redirect?

MR. DURANT: No, sir, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. DURANT: I would ask that Mr. Roberts be

allowed to go to Beaufort.
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THE COURT: All right. Officer Roberts, you may

be excused. Thank you so vefy much.
| THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

THE COURT: Have a safe trip. Where is it,

Beaufort you're héaded?
~ THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, Beaufort.

THE COURT: All right. Have>a safe trip.

Call your next witness, please.

‘MR; DURANT: - The State would call James: Sturkie.

JAMES STURKIE, after being duly sworn, testified
as follows: | ‘

THE CLERK: Thank you, sir. If you would take
your seat. |

Sir, if you would state .your first and last
name, spellinglyOUr last for the reéord, pleése.. |

THE WITNESS: James Sturkie, S-T-U-R-K-I-E.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. DURANT:
Q Could you tell our jury where you're employed, sir?
A City of North Charleston Police Department.
Q And how long have you been with North Charleston
Police Department? A .
A A little over eight years. _
Q What you do at North Charleston Police Department?

A I'm a detective;
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Q And were you doing the same thing on February the
5th, 2010 at approﬁimaﬁély 12:42 in the afternoon?

A Yes, sir, I was.

Q  In that capacity, did you have an opportunity to
respond to the scene, the scene of this shooting Qh Bonds
Avenue?

A Yes; I did.

0 " When you arrived, what did you observe?

A AI saw the victim layiné\on the asphalt off to the
side of the roadway. There was an administrator, I

believe, from the school standing there and several other

people.
Q Okay. What did you do upon arriving on the scene?
A I saw that there was no officers on scene yet so I

secﬁred the ‘scene by gettihg crime scene tape placed

"~ around the scene.

Q Do you know if any witnesses to the incident were
located at the scene, not necessarily by you,'by other
detectives? o -

A Yes, sir. A Jacqgintus Washingfon was located nearby
at the laundromat. |

Q -~ Was he transported to headquarters?

Yes, he was. |

And at around 1;30‘where did you go?

Back to the police station.
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Q And why were you advised to respond back to the
police station?
A Because some officers had Shalaine Jenkins, who was a

witness, said she knew something about the gun that was
used. |

Q And are you aware of whether or not Ms. Jenkins

" provided a statement?

Yes, she did.
To whom?
I believe Detective Cook.
( Could it have been Detective Faison?
I'm sorry, yes, it was Detective Faison. I
apologize.- ‘

Q Okay. Béck at headquarters did you have an
opportﬁnity'to interview Jacquintus Washington?

A Yes, sir{ I did. '

o] Okay. And he wrote out a statément himself; is that
correct?

A Yes, sir, he did.

Q What happened after he wrote out that first
statement?

A He didn't —-- he described being there at the scene,
walking with the victim. He described some details of
what the éhooter Was wearing.

Q Okay. And I believe there's some testimony first
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that he provided a statement that said he.didn't see the
shooting?

A Yes.- |

Q What I'm asking, sir, is what happened. Why did he
change his story when you talked to him?

A Weil, we continued.talking to him. We knew
something -- there was a video that showed several people
walking away from the school,‘and with him being'one éf

them, and he just seemed as if he wanted to -- there was

‘more to this story. So we kept talking‘to him'and he had

given. us a description of the suspect. He gave us all
sorts of details about: the suspect except for thé name.
Okay. Appeared to know the suspect?

Yes.

Did he know where.the suspect lived?

Yes. He gave a street.

OIS o S O

Ckay. And he was able to idéntify the suspect from a
photographic lineup, correct?

A Yes, éir.

Q Now are you aware that Derell Greeh was picked up
that same day and taken to the station around 3 or so,
2:30 or 3; is that correct?

A Yes.

0 Who originally interviewed him?

A Detective Kramitz did. .
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Q And did you participate in that interview at alle
A No, I did not.
Q Now moving ahead to about 7 p.m., did you have an
occasion to speak with the defendant Derell Green
yourself?
A Yes, I did. Detective Miller and I went into the
‘interView room. |
Q And why?
A We had looked'at all the information and we were told

about the videotape of the students coming and going and
the descriptions that were given and Mr. Green was wearing
a camouflage jacket, he was in the video. Shalaine

Jenkins had given us a statement saying that --— having him

. in possession of a gun earlier that morning.

MS. EHRLICH: Objection. Hearsay.
BY MR. DURANT:
Q That's okay. You don't have to say —-- she's alréady
testified.

THE COURT: Well, I mean, she already testified
on cross—examination.

MS. EHRLICH: She said she didn't.say any of
that, though.

THE COURT: Pardon?

MS. EHRLICH: She said she didn't éay any of

that, though.
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MR.-DURANT: That's fine, Your Honor. 1I'll move
on.

THE COURT: Okay. I'll sustain the objection.
BY MR. DURANT:
Q And you interviewed Jacquintus Washington at the
time, correct?
A Yes.
Q  And he identified Derell Green as the shooter?
A Yes, he did.

MS. PROCTOR: And, Your Honor, would you just

- note our previous objection under the Biggers hearing to

this?

THE COURT: Yes, ma'am. Overruled. And I

‘believe the statement's in evidence. Isn't that correct?

MS. PROCTOR: No. We're talking about the ID.
THE COURT: Oh, okay, the identification.
MS. PROCTOR: Yes. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MR. DURANT:

Q So would it be safe to say that when you all were in
there at 7 o'clock you‘didn't believe what he told you
earlier?

A That's correct.

Q Okay. Well, just tell them thét, okay?

And so who went with you?
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Detective Miller was in the room with me.
And he was in the same interview room?

Yes, sir. We were sitting at a table.

(ORI © N

Were you aware if he had already been advised of his
Miranda rights? |

A | Yes, sir.l I believe the Miranda -- his.copy of the
form was still on the table. |

Q And what was his demeanor at. the time that you weht
in there? | |

A Well, he was sitting there calm, not really‘paying

attention to —-- didn't seem like he had much thought going

on.

Q “Okay. Did he appear to be under the influence of

anything?

A 'No, sir.

Q Were you able to communicate with him?

A ' Yes, he was communicating and speaking to us.

Q Did you understand what he said?

A Yes, I did.

Q Could he understand what you said, or appear to
anyway?

A Yes.

Q ' Did he ever exhibit any kind of confusion or anything

of that nature?

A No, he did not.
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Q Was there anything about-his demeanor that iﬁdicates
to yoﬁ that he didn't know what was going on?
A No. | |
o) So what habpéﬁed? I mean, how did it go?
A Well, we were’sitting there. Detective Kramitz had

already been in there, spoke to him. He'd given his
version of the story. His clothing was a different color

than what was in the video. "And we knew from the witness

statements that he was not telling the truth, so I urged

- hin to tell the truth.

Q" I mean, did you tell him flat. out, you'weré not
telling us the truth? |

A | Yes, yes. I had —— about his story --

Q .Did you tell him wﬁy you knew he wasn't telling the
truth? .

A Yes, I did. T told him that we knew that he's

‘already been identified as having the gun. 'He had been

picked out of a photo lineup,.described by'Jacquintus
Washington as the shooter.

Q Okay.

A And he was on video at the school.

Q. And what happened?

A Well, we were in there for 20, 25 minutes speaking to

him. I could see that he was -- we were hitting on some

topics that he was real sensitive about. He would look up
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when I mentioned, you know, that he did it for, you know,
because he was intimidated by the victim at some point,
and I offered him several reasons as to why: Maybe it was

guns, girls, drugs or something of that nature that he was

N

concerned about.
' )
Q Okay. And what kind of tactic did you use, I guess?

Were you being stern, were you being the fatherly type,
were you being angry, were you being -- I mean, what was

your approach? Co ’

. A . No, sir, I was calm, just. talking to him as if I was

a church member concerned about his well-being and him
telling the truth and getting the emotional weight off his
shoulders. '

0 Okay. And so kind of being the more.fatherly type,

I'm assuming?

A Sort of, yes, sir.
Q I believe at a previous hearing you indicated you put
your hand —-—

MS. EHRLICH: Objection.

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir, I placed my hand on his
shoulder.

THE COURT: I'm sorry, what? What's your legal
objection? |

MS. EHRLICH: Leading the witness.

THE COURT: Well, I think he was just —— go
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ahead. That's overruled.

MR. DURANT: Thank you.
BY MR. DURANT:
Q You indicated you put your hand_oﬁ his shoulder. Why
were you doing that? |
A Because I could tell that he was -- he wanted to say
more than he was saying and we had already approached him
with the facts that we had of his being on video, wearing
the camouflage jackét,_the friend seeing him with the gun,
the photo identification, and we had talked to him about
that and he seemed to be a little bit more receptive and
thén I put my hand Qn’his shoulder and urged him to tell
the truth. \
0 And what did he do?
A And then he said, "They ganggdyme/ they took my
chain.” And then he explained that he had a gold chain
with a Jesus head on it that was -- that he'd found at a |
bar or at a party and a month prior to this incident that
he was juﬁped>by several guys and they took his gold
chain. |
Q And he said that one of the guys that jumped him was
the victim in this case?
A Yes, it was.
Q Okay. Did he indicate what kind of gun he used?

A. - It was a black .38 revolver with five rounds.
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Q And so how long were you all in the:e totally, you
and Detective Miller?

A - Detective Miller and I were in there 25 -- 20, 25
minutes.

Q Okay. And during the time that you and Deteétive
Miller were-in there, did you or Detective MillerApromise
him anything?

No, sir.

Threaten him in any way?

No, sir.

Offer him leniency?

No, sir.

T@teaten his family?

No, sir.

Did he ask for a lawyer?

No, sir.

Did he invoke his right to remain silent?

No, sir.

Did he ask for his mothér?.

No, sir.

Now after he admitted to you what had happened, who
ended up taking his statement? |

A Detective Kramitz was informed of what had happenéd,
what was said in the interview room and then he came back

inside and started a second statement.




536

10
11
12
13
14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

JAMES STURKIE - Direct Exam by Mr. Durant
. 687

Q .

Okay. And so Detective Kramitz was actually the

scribner of the second statement; is that correct?

A Yes. He wrote the second statement, yes.
Q Now did you witness the éecond statement?
A Yes, I did.

Were you'in*there the entire time or did you just
come in at the end and witness it?
A No, I came in at the end to witness it.
Q Okay. . And I believe it was brought out previously
that your name appears. to be as a signature on a witness
line on the first page of the firét statement and the
three -- last three pages of‘the second statement.

First of all, did you have any involvement in

the first statement at all?

A

Q
A

No, I did not have involvement.
Okay. And do you know how that'happened?

Detective Kramitz apparently came out of the room

with the statement and during the comparison of the

statements, one of the top form from the first statement

was placed on the second —-

Q
A

Q
A

Okay. .
-- and then when I went back into the room —-
The first pages were mixed up; is that correct?

Yes, they were mixed up. And when I went back:into

the room to ask Derell if he was'—— if this was what he
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had told Detective Kramitz Jjust as he had told Detective
Miller and I, he said yes, and that's when I signed the
form.

0 Okay. Is that the time you signed it?

A Yes.

MR. DURANT: Cquld you please answer any
questions defense counsel may have for you.
THE WITNESS: Yes.
THE COURT: Cross-examination.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. EHRLICH:

Q Detective Sturkie, you work for North Charleston

Police’Department, right?

A Yes, ma'am. |

Q And so you're aware of all fhe ﬁolicies aﬁd
procedures in place? u

A Most of them,iyes,.ma'am.

Q And those are there to kind.of guide you on what to

do?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And that includes a section on interviews?
A Yes, ma'am.

0 And that's not just for suspects, it's for any

interviews, right?

A Yes, ma'am.
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Q

So you're familiar with the policy that the number of

persons permitted in an interview room should be limited

to two officers?

A

Q-

Yes, ma'am.

'Okay.' And you were part of an interview with

- Shalaine Jenkins?-

A
o :
A,
Q
,like

o P O P OO P OO P OO P O w‘

Yes, ma'am.
And I believe you wrote a»report?

Yes, ma'am.

- And in your report’ you documented what happened; just

your role in the investigétion, fight?
Yes,'ma'am.- |

And there were four officers in there talking to her?
Yes, ma'am.

Not tWo?

Yes, ma'am.

You, Detective Cook, right?

- Yes, ma'ém.

Louis?

Yes. ,
And then one other officer, Riedel?
Riedel.

Okay. And when you interviewed her, you were aware

of her age at the time?

A

Yes.
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Q Fourteen?
A Yes.
Q Now you also participated in .an interview with Mr.
Wéshington?
A Yes.

Q  And you talked to him first?

A I-don't think that I talked to him first, but I did
speak to him, yes. | | |

Q You were the first one to actually get in there and

get a statement, though, right?

A Yes.

Q And he told you he didn't see the shooting first?
A Yes, he did. ' A

Q That he was walking when the shooting happened?
A Yes. | |

Q And heard gunshots?

A Yes.

Q And didn't see the shooter?

A Yes. |

Q Right?

After he gave that statement, you didn't let him
leave, right?
A Yes.
0 You kept him there?

A Well, he stayed, yes.
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0 Okay. And then you came back to him to ask him more

questions?

“A Ckay.

Q Right?

A Yes, we talked to him more.

0 And I think you kind of maybe started to push him a
little bit more?

A Yes, because he had given us descriptions of the

people that.were involved and we knew. that because of the

video, that he was pretty much'on with the déscriptions
ahd'the address. / |
Q  Okay. Néw I think in your report you wrote that you
explained the importance of telling the truth?

"Yes. _
" And that his lip started quivering?

Yes.

" And that's when he changes his story?

Yes.

O S O N B S

And gives ybu the description of the person he éays
was the shooter?

A Yes.

Q  Now just like the policies for a regular interview,
you know that there's special policies for juvénile
interviews, right?

A Yes.
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o) And you know that you're suppoéed to take special
consideration when interviewing a juvenile?
A Yes. |
Q Make sure that their rights are explained, take extra
effort?
A “Yes.

Q All right. And one of the policies says thgt, you
know, asking for a parent is like asking for an attorney
in your department?

A Yes. ,

Q And so if during the interview he had asked for his
mother, you would have had to Stop your interview? |

A Yes.

Q You were talking to Derell by 3 o'clock?

A Yes.

0 And I think you were asking him kind of like
identification information?

Yes. |

Name?

Yes.

Age?

Yes.

Gave you his age and date of birth?

Yes.

I think you also got his mother's contact
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. /
information?
Yes, ma'am.
And that's because he gave it to you?
Yes, ma'am.
You didn't do anything to call his mom, right?
His mother was on scene when he was taken.‘
I'm asking what yOU personally did. ' You didn't

personally do anything?

A  No, ma'am.
Q You didn't call her from the station?
A No, ma'am.

Q And really it's to your advantage if he doesn't ask

for his mom, right?

A Yes.
Q> Because then you've got to‘stop your interview?
A Yes.

Q - All right. So you aiso never told Derell, hey, look,
you can ask for your mom?

A No, I did not.

Q Now after you talked to him at the very beginning,
you didn't go back in until four hours later, like around
72 |

A Around 7, yes, ma'am.

Q At that point was he still handcuffed?

A Yes.
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Still no mother there, right?

" That's correct.

Q
A
Q .. And you didn't give him his rights again?
A I did not.

Q

Detective Kramitz hadn't been in there in awhile, to

-your knowledge?

A I'm not really sure what time he left out of the

interview room before I went into the interview room.

Q Okay. But you knew that basically that interview was

over and y;all‘were going to kind of switch gears?

A Yes.
Q ° You were going to go in? .
A Yes.

0 And that's the point where you go in-‘and you don't

-tell him anything what charge he's got, right?

A I don't recall telling him about.the charge.

Q Okay. It's the same room that he's had been in since
he first got there?

A Yes. |

Q Hadn't, you know, been moved into a different room or
anything like that? |

A No, he was never moved.

Q  And in your report you .said that you explained the
importance of telling the ‘truth?

A Yes.
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0 You said he was lying?
A Yés.
Q You told him he was lying and- the trﬁth was was that

he was the shooter?

A Yes.

Q And so you had made a decision at that point he was

ly;ng(and the other witnesses were telling the truth?
A Yes.

Q So really it didn't matter what he said because it

'wasn't-the truth unless he said, "I'm the shooter?"

A Yes,-because we already knew the truth. '
Q 'Well, you knew what you‘believed‘to be the truth,
right? - |

A  Yes.

Q You tell hiﬁ anything like, "it's important to tell
the truth, that's the right thing to do?" '

A Xeé.

Q T think you told him, "tell the truth, you'll have
the weight lifted off your shoulders?”

Yes. _ A

And that's when you started kind of pushing him more?
What do you mean "push"?

I'm not talking physical push. I'm talking --

Yes, I did urge him to tell the truth.

LOTIINH- S O T R O

Okay. And did you tell him anything about not
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getting out?

A

Q
A

Q

What do you mean?
Never going home?
No, I did not.

Okay. So this kind of urging, how you word it, went

on for 20 minutes?

A

Q

Yes, ma'am.

And then he starts showing physical signs of wanting

to tell the truth?

2

A Yes.
Q According to ydur report?y
A Yes.
Q And I think that you describe.that as his lips were
‘quivering? |
A Yes.
Q Kind of like Mr. Washinéton's?
Yes. |
Q And I think that you and I can agree that every time

somebody’'s lips quiver doesn't mean, oh, they want to tell

the truth-?

A

N

= O]

No, that does not mean that.

Could mean that somebody's scared?
Yes.

Or intimidated?

Yes.
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Q Tired?
A Yes.
Q Upset?
A Yes.
Q But for you, that meant, "all right, he's going to

tell me what I want to hear?"

A Well, along with his demeanor. He changed. He kind

" of slumped down a little bit in his seat.

Q Well, he'd been there awhile, iight?

A And his eyes were tearing up, yes, but he was -
sitting. |
Q Okay. So at this point he's also crying?

A He's not crying, but his eyes are tearing up, yes.

0 All right. And so after these physical signs of

wanﬁing to tell the truth, you started to'talk to him
more? |

A Yes. '

Q * I think you sald that you kind of asked hlm, "Wexe
you intimidated by this guy°"

A Yes.

Q And you were kind of talking to him like he was
dealing with high-school type issues?

A Yes.

Q And asked him if it's about girls, right?

A Yes.
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O A O R S R O I )

Monéy?

Yes. .

Drugs? =~ -

Yes.

So you threw it all out there for him?

‘Yes.

Just picklone?'

Yes.

All right. And then after: all that, after the
crying, right?

A» Yes.

Q . And you telling himi"you‘were intimidated by him?"

A Yes. |

Q - And you telling him.what‘it might have‘been about, he
gives a ‘statement?

A Yes. '

Q Ana he says, "I was ganged,"vright?‘

A  Yes, ma'am. ‘

Q And thatfs when he says that he shot the victim,
right, to you?

A Yes, he said that.

0 Okay. And so once you got what you said Was.the
truth, you_went to Detective Kramitz? ,
A - Yes, after he told me again what happened. i didn't‘

Just have him say that and then —- -
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So you practiced it?
A —-- immediately went out

What's that?

of the room.

-~

it before Detective Kramitz

Q - So you have to practiee‘

_came 1in? o

A No. " T just clarified what he said.

Q  So after you gave hlm some stuff to plck fro ;;
A Yes. |
Q0 —= and he plcked 1t°

A

Yes. . Well, he dld not plck the things that I put out

there. That was a scenarlo that’ T gave him.

o Okay.‘”Well,'youtsald
right?

A Yes.

e

Q0  And that's when he told

A Yes.’

VQ You had asked if —-- you

that it could be about?

A Yes.

Q And that's when he‘said
jewelry, right? |
A Yes.

Q So you offered him some

A But I did not offer him

things that he could touch.

"You were 1nt1m1dated by hlm,

you the 'stuff about the gang? .

gave him.different things
it was about a piece of

stuff to take?

any property orhany physical
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Okay. '
That?s not what I offered.

All right. I got you.

Now, I think you said that during the interview

you kind of got in close proximity to Derell?

b~ I e I T o B~

(O Ol 2 - © R O T © B

Yes, ma'am.

And you're tall?

Yes, ma'am.

“You're what, six five?

Yes, ma'am.
And he at the time, do you know his height?
Five five, five six.

So you're over him by at least a foot?

. When I'mlstanding up, yes. But we were sitting down.

Okay. But you came in the room and he -saw you?
Yes.

And when you walk in a room, I think it's fair to say

you're noticeably. tall?

Yes.

And so you sit down in close proximity to him, right?

Yes.

And put your hand on him?

Yes, I did. I mean,'my hand reaching out to somebody

on the shoulder.

Q

I'm not talking about punching him. I'm not talking
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about --
A No, no, no. Me reaching'ouf is I have a pretty long

wingspan here, so yes, I wasn't that close to him.

Q Okay. So you were reaching like this?
A Almost just like this, around the corner of the
table, yes. 4 |

And this was to be fatherly?

More like a concerned community‘member.

Liké a church counselor, I think you said?"

Yes. o

.Telling him to get, you know, the weight off his .

shoulders, something like that?

A "Yes, ma'am.

T Q And when you were at the station that-day, at some

point you had contact with Dagone Lance?

A  Yes, I-did.

Q Now, I'm not asking you what he said. I'm just
asking you did, okay?

At that point did you know he was at the house

"with Derell Green when he was picked up?

A Yes.
o) And he came to the station at the same time?
A Yes.

' 0 And you never collected any of his clothing for

testing?
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A I didn't collect any clothing.
Q Well, you didn't co}lect his at all, right?
A I did not, no.
Q And you were -- you participated in interviewing him,
right?
A Yes, I did.

MS. EHRLICH: Court's indulgence.

(Pause.)

MS. EHRLICH: I don't have any. other questions.

THE COURT: Anything else? Any further
questibﬁs? | :

MR. DURANT: Nothing further, Your Honor.

THE COURT: No redirect? |

MR. DURANT: .No, sir.

THE COURT: You may step down. Thank you very
much.

Call your next witness.
MR. DURANT: The State would call Ira Parnell.

IRA PARNELL, after being duly sworn, testified

as follows:

seat.

THE CLERK: Thank you, sir. If you'll take your

Sir, if you could please state your first and

last name, spelling your last for the record, please.

THE WITNESS: My name is Ira Byrd Parnell, Jr.
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P-A-R-N-E-L-L.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. DURANT:

Q
A

Q
A

Good morning.
Good morning, sir.
Could you tell our jury what .you do?

I am a forensic firearms examiner and I work at the

forensic laboratory at SLED headquarters in Columbia,

South Carolina.

Q
A
Q
»
Q

Arid how long have you been With SLED?
Thirty-nine years.

A long, long time?

Yes, sir.

I think you've probably retired two or three times;

is that right?

A
Q
A

0

At least.
And they keep bringing you back?

Yes, sir.

And you have been involved in firearms identification

for how long, sir?

A
Q
A
0

Thirty-eight years.
Pretty much the whole fime?
Yes, sir.

And what is your educational training and specific

training in the area of firearms identification?
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A I graduated from the University of South Carolina
with a degree in the area of criminal justice.

During the latter part of my college career I
was also working at SLED and receiving on-the-job training
from three court-qualified firearm and tool mark examiners
there.

At the time that I was being trained, there was
no college or school or really any formal training other
than on-the-job from other examiners that I could have
attended. So I underwent a three-year internship program,
during which.time I assisted the examiners who were there

by helping them prepare cases, observing them, watching

 their microscopic work, watching their note taking,

watching their various procedures and receiving training‘
like that.

And during the latter part of that training,
then I was allowed to actually look at the microscope,
observe, and come to my own conclusions under their
supervision. And, of course, they would sign the reports
at that time.

But at the end of that internship program, I
started taking my own cases, making my own comparisons
and, of course, having those checked behind by those
qualified examiners for probably six months to a year.

Since that time, I've been doing comparisons and
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testifying in the state courté of South Carolina, the
federal district court and North Carolina state court.
I've been.qualified approximately 614 times as a firearm
and tool mark examiner.

Q And we've had much experience together, have we not,

over the years?

A A.~Yes, we have.

Q And-you're obviously authorized by SLED to conduct
firearm identification; is that cbrrect?‘
A That's correct, sir. And I have also attended
specialiied schools of the FBI National ‘Academy, our state
academy, the Association of Firearm and Tool Mark-
Examiner's seminars that occur yearly for a week where we
meet and discuss the latest developments in firearm and
tool mark examination. So yes, sir.

MR. DURANT: Your Honor, at this time I'd offer
Mr. Parnell as an expert in firearm and tool mafk
identification.

‘THE COURT: Any objecfion?

'Ms; PRGCTOR: No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. The Court so finds.

MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honor.
BY MR. DURANT:
Q With regard to this partigular case, your Lab No.

1-10-01676, did you have the occasion to examine any items
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“examined this item.

submitted by the North Charleston Police Department?
A Yes, sir, I did.

Q And essentially you only got one item; is that

. correct?

A That's correct.

0 And what was that item?

A It was one fired bullet.

4Q And I hand you what's previously been'marked‘as.

State's Exhibit No. 34 and ask you to take a look at that
and tell me if that's the bullet you examlned

A Yes, sir. The item contained in State's Exhlblt 34
is a fired .38 or .357 magnum caliber projectile or
bullet. - It bears my case number, spécimen number, and
initial on the bullet and all the.packagihg,féo I have.

MR. DURANT: Your Honor, 4t this time we'd offer

State's No. 34 into evidence if there is no objection.

MS. PROCTOR: No objection.
THE COURT: Okay. No. 34. Is that it, 347
MR. DURANT: I believe so.
- Is that correct, sir?
THE WITNESS: That's correct.
THE COURT: State's 34 is admitted without

objection.
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(WHEREUPON, STATE'S Exhibit No. 34 was admitted
into evidence.)
BY MR. DURANT:

Q And I believe you said that it appeared to be —-

‘based upon your analysis, it appeared to be a .38 caliber

or .357 caliber projectile; is that correct?

A . That's correct.

Q - And how did you arrive at that conclusion?

A By phy51cal measurement of State's Exhibit.34 and
from prlor experlence

Q A Okay. Pretty much a .38 caliber and .357 bullet are

- pretty much ‘the same diameter; is that correct?

A " Yes, sir. Both calibers are .357 thousandths of an
inch.
Q. Okay.

A And the .38.special can be fired in a .357 magnum

firearm, but a 357'cannot be fired in a .38 special

because of the dlfference in the chamber length.

Q -Right. And it's not necessarily -- and also it's a

more powerful load obviously on a .357; is that correct?
A Correct.

Q Tt eould blow your regular .38 special apart maybe?
A It could, yes, sir.

Q  Now, as part of your examination, did you have an

occasion to conduct microscopic examination of the lands
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and grooves on the projectile, State's Exhibit 347

A I did.

Q And based upon your examination, were you able to

come up with a list of pistois which could have fired
State's Exhibit 347

A Yes, sir. We furnished what is termed a general
rifling chafacteristic list or possible wéapons list when
we have 6nly a projectile to examine and that is furnished
to the investigators for investigative aid. The list may
or may not be all exclusive, but what We have is a
database that's furnished by the FBI .and updated yearly of
the mosﬁ commonly'encouﬁtered firearms into their
laboratory-énd certain other laboratories around the
nétion.

These measurements are put in the database and

-‘when we receive an item such as State's Exhibit 34, and we

will microscopically examine and measure the impressions

of the rifling on the outside of the bullet and enter that

data into our computer in the database and it gives us a

list of possible weapohs.

- In this case, there were approximately 18
firearms that could have fired State's Exhibit 34. There
may be others.

0 Okay. And with regard to the list of the firearms

that could have fired State's Exhibit 34, were all of
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those revolvers?
A All except for one.
Q Okay.
A And that is a -- the one exception is a C-0O-P or a

.

Cop, Incorporated, and it has actually four barrels.

Q. _.Four barrels?

- A Four barrels. Four individual barrels, four

individual firing pins, one trigger with a rotating-

striker mechanism.
I only had one bullet to compare so I couldn't
tell you that it was ﬁot'one of those.
I assume that's not a very common Weapon?
"I've only examined, I think, two.
Okay. In 39 years?

Yes, sir.

IO O I O

Okay. And just for the jury's purpose, what's the
difference obviously between a révolver and a
semi-automatic?
A The revolver is called a revolver because it«has a
cylinder, a round cylinder in the middle of the firearm
which revolves or rotates.

Soﬁe firearms rotate to the left -
counterclockwise, some rotate to the right clockwise.
Well, it makes no difference, but they do revolve.

The barrel is stationary and each pull of the
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trigger or cock of the hammer and pul; of the trigger
causes a fresh round to be rotated up and in line with the
bore of the barrel. |

When the firing pin strikes the back end of that
cartridge, that cartridge fires the bullet out of the

barrel. The next cock of the hammer or pull of the

-trigger rotates another one up until the firearm is empty.

A semi-automatic has a magazine or a clip that's
inserted normally inFOwthe grip or the magazine well of.
the firearﬁ.‘ It requires no motion other than the
recoiling of the slide to make the firearm function.

When you pull the:frigger, it's loaded, charged,
the trigger's pulled, that cartridge is fired, the slide
comes back, the fired cartridge case is expelled from the
firearm and on the forward stroke the slide picks up an
unfired cartridgevout of theAtop of the mégazine and loads
it into the chamber going to the battery position. This
happens, assuming the gun functions properly, each time
the trigger is pulled for one pull of the trigger, one
firing.

A fully automatic operates the same except when
you pull the trigger back and hold it, it just -- the
slide operates by itself. |

A revolver, the cartridge cases stay in the

cylinder and must be manually removed by somebody.
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Q  And I believe we already stated you only had the

projectile submitted in that case; is that correct?

A One fired bullet, yeé, sir.

Q  No firearm was submitted for comparison; is that
correct?

A- That's correct.

Q And you can't, as a firearm examiner, of course,

“determine in a lot of occasions whether or not a

projectile‘Was fired by a-pérticular firearm; is thaﬁ
correct?. | |
A . Yes,'very, vefy freqUently.
o) ’kaayl " But couldn't inithis case because we didn't
havé a firearm to compare it to; is that correct?
A = That's correct, yes,-sif.'
_MR. DURANT: Could you please .answer any
queétions defense counsel may have for you.
MS. PROCTOR: Cross—examination. o -
CROSS—EXAMINATION
BY MS. PROCTOR: '
Q Would you say that a .38's a pretty common gun?
A Yes, ma'am.
MS. PROCTOR: I have no further questions.
THE COURT: Any recross -- 1 mean redirect?

MR. DURANT: No, sir, Your Honor. I'd ask that

- Agent Parnell be excused.
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how you look at somebody wrong, but I didn't see anything
to equating mugging with physical violence from the

testimony I heard. So based on. that, your motion is

denied.
MS. EROCTOR: Thank you, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Anything else Before we bring the
jury in? |
'MRT DURANT: Not from us, Your Honor.
' THE COURT: Bring‘us the jury, please.
(The jury came into open court at_appfoximately

11:53 a.m.)
THE BAILIFF: The jury's all seated, Your Honor.
'THE COURT: Thank you very much.

‘You may-call your next witness, please.

- MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honoi.

' The State would call Dr. Erin Presnell.

-DR. ERIN PRESNELL, after being duly sworn,
testified as follows: ' | '

THE CLERK: Thank you. Doctor, if you'd take
your seat. |

And if you would, state your first and last
name, spelling your last for the record, please.

VTHE WITNESS: My name is Susan Erin Presnell,
P-R-E-S-N-E-L-L. |

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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BY MR. DURANT:
Q  Good afternoon, Dr. Presnell. How are you?
A Good. ‘Thank you.
Q  Could ygu please tell our jury what you?
A I'm a forensic pathologist. ‘I'work'down the foad at
the Medical University of South Carolina.
Q And how long hévé YOu been with the Medical {
UniVersity of South Carolina and a medical examiner?
A Well, we actually are'a coroner state, not a medical

‘examiner state, which is a different issue, but I've been

on the faculty as a forensic pathologist since 1999.

Q Okay.
A So lO,'ll,le years.

Q You %re a'licenséd physician in the state ofASouth
’Carolina?

A Yes.

Q And how long have you been practicing medicine?

A 'Ilreceivedlmy M.D. in 1993.

o “Well, the way that it kind ofirolls out is ybu
go to medical school, you get YOUr M.D. I received that
in 1993. I did my pathology residency where I'm in
training and finished that after the five-year training
program in 1998, then did my sﬁb;specialty, not just-
general pathology but forensic pathology from 1998 to '99

and then was hired as faculty.
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MS. PROCTOR: ‘Your Honor, we will stipulate she
is an expert in forensic pathology.

THE COURT: Tﬁe Court so finds.. But you may
introduce her to the jﬁry however yéu feel is appropriate,
okay?

.MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. DURANT:
Q You are the one that performed the autopsy in this

case; 1s that correct?

A On Larry Maybank, yes.

Q And when was that autopsy performed?

‘A February 6th, 2010. ‘

Q .Apd-where was it performed?

A MUSC.

Q And could you tell our jury what was Mr. Maybank's
age?

A He came to us as a 1l7-year-old teenager.

Q And his height?
A He was 71 inches, which is almost six feet.
Seventy-two inches is six feet. And he's 160 pounds.
Q Okay. |

MR.VDURANT: Your Honor,’at this point we would
offer State's Exhibits 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24,
25, 26, I believe without objection.

MS. PROCTOR: Right, Your Honor. ° \
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THE COURT: All right. So it's 15, 16, 17, 18,
19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25,~26, and it would be without
objection; is -that correct? |

MS.APROCTOR: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

(WHEREUPON, STATE'S Exhibits Nos. 15, 16,17,

18, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26 were admitted into
evidence.)

BY MR. DURANT:
Q Now, as far as youf autbpsy, obviously did you
perform an external examination of the body?
A Yes. All of our forensic autopsies are full external
and full internal and diagram documentation and then
photographic documentation. -
Q And as a result of YOur external examination of the
body, were you able to determine any Qf evidence of recent
injury?
A Yes. |
Q . And what --
A Well, Larry Maybank had a nuﬁber,of superficial
injuries, abrasions. He had some abrasions across the
bony prominenées of his right face, on the back of his

right hand and on both knees, probably kind of a terminal

- fall type, sustained during the terminal fall and collapse

to the ground.
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And then he had two other more major injuries.
One actually was not life threatening, it was a gunshot
wound to the right hip area. It just went through a —-
real short. It went in through the skin just underneath
the soft tissue and right back out again. Again, that's
over the right hip.

And then he had a -- his fatal injury was a
gunshot wound to his right back right by the armpit area,
kind of in that general vicinity, that went through his
body. It went through the rib in the back on the right;
went through the right lung and went through a number of
great vessels leaving the heart as well as the trachea or
the windpipe, and it went between the collar bone and the
first rib and came fo rest in the pectoralis muscle, or
the muscle ih the front of the chest, where the bullet
stayed and where the bullet was récovéred.

Q Okay. And I didn't mean you to go through all that
right now, but we're going to make you come down and we'll
go through some pictures and go through this a little more
detailed, if we could.

A I'm sorry.

Q You can just stand there so you have somewhere to put
your notes.

Okay; Let's start with State's Exhibit 15.

What does this depict?
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A This is Larry Maybank. He's laying on the table, so

his head is up here and here's his belly button and - his
feet would be down here. There's his buttocks. And this
is his right hip area that actually had an abrasion or

a -- and when I say "abrasion," I mean like a scratch

where somebody fell down and scraped the skin, right on

that bony part of the hip right there. And then this
right here is one gunshot wound, and we labeled it A and B

for -- just so these two connect. So, again, real

superficial, just under -- the bullet going through the

soft tissue right under. the skin and back out again.

0  And let me switch to State's Exhibit No. 16.

A This is up closer. . You can see —-- again, it's the
same picture, ﬁust up closer -- well, a different picture
but up closer. | | |
Again,  the abrasions and these two gunshot
wounds that connect -- when I say two gunshot wounds, it's
actually one gunshot wound, the entrance and the exit.
Q Okay. Islthis wound here, is this associated with
the gunshot at all? What caused that one?
A No. That's an abrasion or scraping of the skin.
Again, it's probably part of thét whole complex he had on
his face, his knees, and the back of his hand from his
terminal fall, his final fall.

Q Okay. And, of course, when we're talking about
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gunshot wounds, a medical exqminer usually uses a term of
distant or contact or contact woﬁnd, whatever.. What do
you cetegorize this wound?

A Well, just from way of'explanation, as a forensic
pathologist we can put a gunshot'woundf}n three general
categories: Either a contactﬁgunéhot weund, a close range’
gunshot wound, or a distant gunshot wohnd.

And the way we do that is to appreciate that not

"only does the bullet come out the end of the barrel but

also soot and.little tiny gunpowder.particles as well;’
So.in a contact gunshot wound, if you heve the

muzzle of the barrel up against the skin, you'll get a

deposit, a rim of soot,:and you: can even sometimes see

your skin around the entranCe Wound.

| As you pull the gun away from the‘ta;get or the
victim's skin, the soot, which is a lot lighter than
little tiny pieces of gunpowder particle, may'or may not
reach the skin; but the iittle small gunpowder particles
still will. They hit the skin, they deposit there and-
they can also just scratch it, and se you get.a.bunch of
little pinpoint scratches around the entrance wound. This
signifies a clese range gunshot weund.

As the gun gets further away, the soot doesn't

make it, the gunpowder partlcles don't make it, and so

we've just got a gunshot wound with no soot around it,
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none of that stippling marks or scratches around it. You
would call that a distént gunshot wound.

To kind of narrow down the range, when does that
occur for a particuiar gun, you would éctually have to

test fire that weapon. But in general, to kind of include

.most of all handguns, most all handguns by the time

they're back to three feet or so, then that's when they -
become distant gunshot wounds. So three feet and beyond

we would expect - to see a hole with n6 soot; no stippling,

and we'd call that a distant gunshot wound.

.In Mr..Maybank'svcase,-his does not have any
soot, does- not havé any stippling, so it could be
consistent.with a -gunshot wound. HoweVer,'he waé -- we
believe that he was wearing up to four layers of clothing
and the clothing, of course, would shield his skin from.
that type of —-- those type of deposits. So we didn't
actually specify it is consiétent with a gunshot wound
because it has no soot or stippling scratches around it..
Q Could you examine -- you had his 6uter‘jacket at the
autopsy, .did you not?

A Yes.

Q Was that examined by you for any evidence of a close
gunshot wound? |

A Yes. We looked at it, we looked at all his clothing

and found the defects corresponding to his gunshot wound.
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Unfortunately, the clothing was very dark, it was very
bloody, and can obscure whether there is anything present
or not that we could see visually. We didn't see
anything, but that doesn't mean that something may not
have been there.

Q Okay. So there was no physical evidence of stippling
or anything like that on the clothing itself?

A Correct. |

Q Okay. - Now in your autopsy report you describe this
particular wound A/B as essentially one shot through and
through; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q You've described it as a superficial wound. . Would
thatvgunshot'wound have been fatal in and of itself?

A No.

Q .Okay. Let's move on to gunshot C and State's Exhibit .

No. 17. Is this what you have designated as gunshot C in

"this autopsy?

A Yes, sir. This is -- I can show,you closer up, but
right here, this little pink round area --

Q Okay. If I could, I'll go to. 18 which is closer up.
A Yes. And this is a closer photograph of the gunshot
wound that goes to the -- into the back. |
Q Okay. And if you would, could you describe once

again the path of the bullet and the injuries inflicted by
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that particular gunshot. .
A Again, and I'm sorry for doing it earlier, but this
gunshot wound goes --
Q And we will switch if it will be of assistance to you -
to State's Exhibit No. 19. |
A Yes. I wrote this diagram, I found it and tiied‘to

label it to kind of appreciate all the names of the
vessels and all. | '

This is kind of a cartoon diagram looking at
somebody from the front. So>this person would be standing |
in front of us and facing us.

Here is like a section of the right lung. This
is the neck area, with that blue thing back there is fhe
tréchea or the windpipe. And then the head, of course,
would bé up here.. And this right here is the top half of
the heart.

.So this is his right side. . So we have the

bullets coming in. It comes in through one of the back

ribs back on the right. It goes through this middle lobe

of the right lung, the upper lobe of the right lung. It
hits the superior vena cava, which is what's illustrated
here. The vessels in blue are veins. They're bringing
deoxygenated blood back to the heart to get oxygen'again
in the lungs. So all this is coming back to the heart.

The red is oxygenated blood and all this is leaving the
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heart through the aorta here. |
So the bullet begins coming through the right

lung and hits this main superior vena cava, which is
bringing all'the blood from the top half of the body back
to the heart, as well as these two main contributing
vessels here. |

\ ‘It hits what is called the brachiocephalic
artery, which is the main artery taking blood to the

common carotid and to tﬁe arm on the right side as well as

the left carotid artery here. And, in addition to that,

it strikes the trachea as well.

And, remember, it's coming from the back

forward. So that's kind of a little hard -to appreciate on

the two-dimensional diagram, but in general, this is the
pathway.

So through the lungs, through the superior vena
cava and these vessels, this artery, this artery and the
windpipe in the back.

Q Okay. And this, of course, was the fatal wound?
A Yes.

Q And you also indicated that you found several
abrasions and I just want to go through some of these
additional pictures with you, starting with State's
Exhibit 21.

A I did observe abrasions on the back of the right
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hand.
Q ~ And State's Exhibit 222

A On the left knee an abrasion. You can see a little
bit on the right knee as well. |

Q . This is State's 23.°

A You can see more on the right knee.

Q And what do you ascribe those,injuries to?

A They're consistent with a fall. They're‘hitting the

bony prominence. Again, he's got some on his face, too,

that are around the cheek bone ahd;all, so falling down

and hitting bony prominences.

.Q  Okay. And that;s what you mean by a terminal fall?

A 'Right. Right. I mean he could have fallen before,

too, and got back up and what not, but yes, ultimately a

fall to the ground.

Q And would the injuries caused by gunshot wound C as
you have designated cause his demise rather rapidly?

A Yes.

O And why is that?

A Well, you're basically cutting off all the blood
supply to your brain, the right carotid and the left
carotid as well and all the blood coming back to your
heart from the upper part of your body.

Q Was there a good -- did you find a good bit of

internal bleeding?
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A ©Oh, yes. He had a lot of blood in his chest
‘cavities. |
Q And there's been some description of blood coming out

of his mouth. Do you know what would have caused that?
A Well, he didn't die immediately. And we describe
kind of a frothy, like a blood-tinged frothy fluid --

well, froth, blood-tinged froth in the airways. And,

‘remember, he's-shot through the windpipe, the trachea as

~well. So as he's breathing, you know, it's bleeding,

blood's going in there and you kind of get a foamy type
creation secondary to that effort of breathing, of
bringing that'oxygen in, you know, breathing air in,
breathing it back out. |

Q Qkay. And where did the buliet eventually end up?
A : In the left chest muscle, the left pectoralié. |
Q And that's depicted on State's Exhibit 247

A Yes. This is an x-ray that we did at the time of

autopsy and you can -see. the bullet right there, which this -

.is again like we'd be looking at the person, they're

'standing in. front of us looking at them back.

Q - Okay. And State's Exhibit 25 is what?

A This is the recovered bullet.

Q Ahd what was done with that projectile?

A We transferred all of the evidence that we recovered

over to North Charleston law enforcement.
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Q Okay. And in this case I believe it was J.T. Thomas
with‘North.CharleSton that it was turned over to; is that
correct?
A Yes.

Q ° And finally State's Exhibit No. 26.

A This is -— when we received Mr. Maybank he was

unclothed because of emergency intervention, but‘théSe
clothes*accompanied him, and this is one of the'jackefs -~
this is:the‘ﬁacket'that he was wearing that accompanied
his body. | H

Q . And is that one of the items of clothing that you

examined to determine if there was any evidence of a close

gunshot wound?
A - Yes.
Q  And you were unable to find any evidence of a close
gunshotﬂwound; is that correct? |
A “Yes. | |
Q Okay. Thank you, Doctor. You can resume your seat.
I just have a couple more questidns and I'll'be done.

| Was toxicology done on'the victim?
A 'Yes, toxicology was done on his blood and he had
caffeine; cotinine, which is a metabolite of nicotine; and
marijuana and marijuana metabolite.A
Q Okay. And it was negative for ethanol; is that

correct?
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A Correct.

Q . And based upon the history you obtained in this case
and your autopsy, were you able to reach an opinion based
upon a reasonable degree of medical cerﬁainty as to the
cause of death in this case?

A Yes. He died from the gunshot wound to his back.

Q And essentially bled out; is that correct? |

A fesL

Q And it was primarily from gunshot wound C that we

have. seen on the diagram'there?

A Yes, the one to his back:

MR. DURANT: Thank. you very much. Would you

‘please answer.any questions defense counsel may have.

MS. PROCTOR:" No questions, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. ‘You'may step down. Thank you
very much.

MR. DURANT: We'd ask that Dr. Presnell be
excused. |

THE COURT: Dr. Presnell, you may be excused.
Thahk you very much.

Call your next witness.

MR. DURANT: Your Honor, I believe at this

point -- Madame Court Reporter, do I have 15, 16, 17, 18,

19, 21 through 26 in evidence?

THE COURT REPORTER: Yes, sir.
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MR. DURANT: And in that case, Your Honor, I
believe the State will rest.
THE COURT: Okay. May I see the attorneys up
here just a second.
| (A bench confgrence was held with the judge and
attorneys in the presence of the jury but out of the
‘hearing of the jufy.)
THE COURT: All right. LadieS'énd gentlémen of
the jury, the State has tested. At this time i’have to

take up certain motions required by law and do another |

hearing that I'm required‘to do. So we're going to take a

lunch break at this time, and if you'd be back in.the jury
room at 2#15, we'll finish up the trial at that time. -

I hope you have'a good lunch. And don't discuss
the case amongstvyoﬁrselves or with anyone else.

(The jury left open court at approximately 12:16

pm.) |

THE COURT: Any motions from the State?

MR. DURANT:. Noﬁ that I know of.

THE COURT: I didn't think you would, but I
thought I'd just offer if somebody might have one.

MR. DURANT: I appreciate you asking, though.

THE COURT: Any motions from fhe defense?

MS. PROCTOR: Yes, sir, Your Honor. At this

time we'd renew all the motions we made during the trial
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MS. EHRLICH: Judge, the defense rests.

THE COURT: Okay. The defense rests is simply,
in other words, the defense is not going to offer any
testimony, so we'll just.go into closing argumenfs, okay?

Solicitor.

MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

In opening statement, Ms. Erhlich, Mr. Green's
attorney, referred to Derell Green as a child. Derell
Green is not a child. Derell Green was 14 years old, 16
years old now. He was a teenager. He was old enough to

know better. A fourteen-year-old should know that murder

is morally and legally wrong. You don't get a free pass

because you're 14 years old when you kill somebody.

This case is not about Derell Green's age. This
caée is about what Derell Green did. And if you decide
this case on the basis of Derell Green's age as opposed to
what the evidence shows you Derell Green did, then you
will have violated the oath you took in here on Tuesday
morning when you agreed to be on the jury in this case.

Because the evidence in this case establishes beyond any

- reasonable doubt that Derell Green planned and carried out

the murder of Larry Taron Maybank. This was nothing but
an execution.
And what evidence have you heard in here this

last couple of days to establish that fact? I'm going to
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try to walk you through it at this time.

You first have the testimony of Jacquintus
Washington; If you recall,.Jacquintus knew'Taron from the
Summit'program at Daniel Jenkins Academy. They had been
in the program about a month and were friends with each

other. They weren't the best of friends, but they were

friendly with each other. ' - L

Jacquintus Washington did not know Derell. He
didn't know his name}’but‘he;d seen him, and he'd seen him
a bunch of times. He had seen him at the bus stop because
where Jacquintus got on and off the bus at Dorcﬁester Road
was right where Derell Green's -- the road Derell Green
lived on intersected with Dorchester Road. He had seen
him on several occasions. It's not like that day was the

first day that he had ever laid eyes on Derell Green. He

‘knew what he looked like and he knew where he lived.

When he and Ta;én left school that day and they
walked by Derell Green and his group of friends, he
reéognized Derell Green then. He recognized the people
Derell Green was with. He didn't know their names, but he
recognized Dagone Lance, he'd seen him on the bus before.
He recognized Antonio Smalls-Heyward and Rashawn Bradley,
having seen them as students at Daniel Jenkins Academy.

So he knew what all four of those people looked like. Not

personal friends with them, but he knew who they were.




10
11
12
‘13
14
15
le6
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

579

) o 742

So as he and Taron walked by them on the school
yard, he and Taron continue on down Bonds Avenue. And as
they get down Bonds Avenue,. Jacquintus looks behind him
and he sees Derell Green right behind them. Derell Green,
the Derell Green that he knows and has seen before. Not
Daqoﬁe Lance, not Antonio Smalls—-Heyward, not Rashawn
Bradley. He sees them, too, but he sees them back up at
the school just'as is shown on that video that you've
seen. |

And so he turns around and he continues to walk
with Taron and he hears a gunshot. And.ﬁe turns around

and he sees Derell Green, gun in hand, shooting at Taron.

‘He sees Taron‘stagget and collapse in the driveway of 2630

. Bonds Avenue. He sees Derell Green in his camo'jacket run

across Bonds Avenue and through the house.

And I guess the defense theory of the case

regarding Jacquintus-Washington is that for some reason he

has decided that he is going to frame Derell Green,

somebddy that he doesn't know on a personal level,

- somebody that he's hever had a beef with, sqmebody that he

is unaware has ever been in a beef with Taron.

What possible motive could he‘haVe to name
Derell Green as the shooter in this case? Why would he
frame -Derell Green? ‘Why would he name Derell Green as the

person who killed Taron Maybank?
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'Because, ladies and gentlemen, Derell Green was
the person that killed Taron Maybank. It's the only thing
that makes sense. And you} as a jury, would be completely
within your rights to find Derell Green guilty of murder
based solely upon the testimoﬁy,of Jacquintus Washington.

- But you‘have.more than that.‘ Yoﬁ have much more
than that. |
You havé,thentestimohy of Rashawn Bradley and -
Antdnio Smalls-Heyward. These people are Derell Green's -

friends. They have no reason whatsoever to faISely accuse

'their friend of .murder.

And what did both of them tell you? Pretty much
what is borne out on that vidéotape} - They get together,

Tafon‘and Jacquintus walk by them, they fall right in

" behind them. Rashawn says he isn't aware of any bad

blood. Antonio .admits that he is aware that there's a bad

. blood between Derell Green and Taron, and he thinks -that

they're going to gang him.

So they're walking down Bonds, the victim and
his friend, and Derell and his four friends‘areAbehind:
them, aﬁd it's at this point that Rashawn Bradley says
he's sees Dagone Lance pass something to Derell. And
Antonio, although saying he didn't see him pass it, he
figured it came from Dagone because there was no other way

for Derell to get the gun because they had just come out
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of school, they couldn't take that gun into school with
them, and the only -- and he didn't go to any house to get
it at-an abandoned house, so the:onlyiway he got that gun
was from Dagone Lance. |

- 'And I guess their theory with regard to Rashawn

Bradley and Antonio Smalls-Heyward is they're lying about

their friend Derell because they must like their other
friend Dagone Lance better and it was really Dagone Lance
that killed them and they're just lying about Derell to
save Dagone Lance. |

But the only problem with that thebry, ladies
and gentlemen, is that video shows beyond any doubt that
Daqoné Lance was not down there in frdﬁt of 2630 Bonds

Avenue when the victim was killed. He was up there by the

‘school with Rashawn Bradley and with Antonio

Smalls-Heyward. And deépite Dagone Lance's involvement in
this case -- and it was considerable -- he was not the
shooter. The man in black was not the shooter.

And it's true that both of them when picked up a
week later and taken to the police station did théir
statements independent of one énother: oOh, yeah;‘I was
out there, I heard gunshots, I was there. I don't know if
that's because they were scared, I don't know if that's
because they didn't want to be snitches, I don't know if

that's because they didn't want to name their friend
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Derell Green, bﬁt the. stories they've initially told the
police were not true;

But the police knew they weren't trué. Because
the police”had other-evidence that. they didn't know about.
And when they‘were confronted wifh the.fact that they
weren't telling. the:truth, that the poliée knéw they

weren't telling the truth, and'the'pOlice had evidence

that they weren't telling the truth, then they finally

gave up‘the ghost and told them what happened.

And Antonio Smalls-Heyward probably said it best

when he was being cross—examined by Ms. Ehrlich -and she

- was asking him as to why he changed his story. A2nd he

said -- and I wrote it down at the time. He said because
they already knew the truth. Not because that's what they
made me say, not because that's what they told mé to say,
but because they already knew the truth.

And the-truth,'ladies and gentlemen, is that
Derell Green murdered Taron Maybank.

You would be well within you'righté to find. him
guilty of murder based upon the testimony of Jacquintus
and Antonio and Rashawn. But you have more than that.
You have the testimony of Vadrein Simmons. She is the
lady that came to pick up her son from school and found
out that he'd already left on fbot, turned around, was

‘ [
heading back down Bonds Avenue towards Dorchester Road.
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Vadrein Simmons has no dog in this fight. She
doesn't know him, she doesn't know the guy that got
killed, but as she's driving down Bonds Avenue she sees

Taron Maybank stagger out into the road. And the next

thing she sees, a young black male with a camo jackét on

running in front of her car,. gun in hand, from her side
left to her right across Bondé Avenue and jump over the
fence. And she stops her car and she cails 911, and you
heard how upsetfshe was. And anyone that had seen that
would have been upset just like she was.

But if you noticed on that 911 tape —— and I

‘don't know how well you could hear -— when she was asked

by the dispatcher what did he look. like, the only thing
that in her. upset ﬁind that she could remember, "He's
wearing an army jécket. A camouflage jacket? Yes,
ma'am."

And it is true that in the description she gave
to the police later on, somehow the shooter had grown
dreads and had black pants on. And when she said that,
she was not lying. Ms. Simmons believed to her core that
that person had dreads and black pants on in addition to

the camo jacket. She told them about the camo jacket in

"her statement, too. And she believed that to her core all

the way up to the'point where she saw that video. Then

she realize that she had been mistaken.
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And I don't know if it was because she had
imprinted the victim‘s~dreads on the defendant. I don't
know if she mistook the hoodie on the back of his jacket
as dreads, or I don't know if it was just due to the fact
that she was so completely distraught, but the fact of the
matter is that she was wrong about that. But she was
constantly thrbugh this whole Ehing has been sure .of one

thing: That the person running in front of her car with

ithé gun in hand was wearing a camo jacket and it was the

same Eamo jacket that she saw Derell Green wearihg when he
left Daniel Jenkins Acédemy on that video. |

Ard then you have the'téstimbny of Kaylyn
Heyward. Likewise, Ms. Heyward'has no dog in this fight;

doesn't know either side. If you recall, Ms. Heyward was

:the'lady that had gone there with her husband to drop off

the car with her momma who was a teacher at Daniel .
Jenkins. And after dropping off the car and she and
husbahd'were leaving in their Kia, she notices a commotion
and her attention is drawn to a person she identified on
the video as Rashawn Bradley that was running and he
appeared to be scared. And as she's watching him
wondefing what is going on, her husband says, "Look out;"
grabs her, she tﬁrns.around because she's driving and what
does she see? She sees a young black male, camo jacket,

running in front of her car from left to right across
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Bonds Avenue and jumping the fence and running away.

And what does the camo jacket look like that she
saw? Well, ld and behold, it looks just like  that one |
Derell Green was wearing on that video when he walked out
of Daniel Jenkins Academy.

And next we come to our reluctantkwitneSs,
Shalaine Jenkins. Shalaine Jenkins was.the girl who
testified yesterday.

| She'é at,fhe‘Nbrth Charleston Police Départmént
within two hours of this shooting. She gives a statement,
the detective writes it.down, she signs the-statemént.

- What's contained in the statement is that she
was with Dagone and Derell that morning with another quy
named Jacquan before school. They were walking. Derell
pulls up hisvshirtg’shows her a gun. Later on Deiell and
Dagone Lance walk off in one dirécfion and she and Jacquan
walk off in another. |

From her.statement we learn that Derell Green
had algﬁn that mornirig. We also know that from the
statement Derell Green gave later. And we know. that he
waé with Dagone Lance that morning.

And then she takes that stand yesterday and sﬁe
admits, oh, yes, that's my signature on that statement.
And she admits, ‘no, I.didn't sign a blank paper, the

statement was already there when I signed it, but I didn't
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tell them anything.

Weli, ladies and gentlemen, if you believe that,
I've got some real estate you might be interested in in
Florida.

The judge will tell you later on in this>case

that you-‘as the jury are the judges of the facts. That

~ you are to judge the credibility of the witnesses that
appear on that witness'stand, to tell who is telling the

truth and who is not .telling the truth.

With that in mind, lédies and'gehtlemen, after.
haVing séen her performancé on that stana, after "
witneséiné,her demeanor on that stand, is théfe any .
question”in'y§ur mind where her. loyalties lie? Right over
there at that tableé. o

:; And now T want to talk about the videotaﬁé.' And
I know I haveAshbwn-you that videotépe to the point that
you are sick of seeing it. That being said, I'm going to
show it .to you again. Because now I have the opportunipy~
to commeﬁt on-it. |

And'that surveillance.video from Daniel Jeﬁkins
Academy is very important in this case for two reasons.

Number one, it'corronrates the testimony of the
witnesses you have heard in this courtroom regarding the
shooting: Jacquintus Washington, Rashawn Bradley, Anton;o

Smalls-Heyward, Vadrein Simmons, and Kaylyn Heyward.
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Secondly, it pretty gonclusively establishes
that Dagone Lahce and Rashawn Bradley and Antonio
Smalls-Heyward wefe not the shooters, because they were
not down there at the timé that the shooting occurred.

Sam, could ‘we put that up?

THE CLERK: Yes, sir.

MR. DURANT: And I'm going to need you to dim
the lights pretty much all the way, if you can.

And we're going to. start this video at' 12:34:57.
This whole incident from beginﬁing to end is about five
minutes. And when we start this video, I want you to look
right up here. There's a tree here. And right now you
see somebody who has been hiding behind that tree come out
and start walking. And that person has been identified as
Dagone Lance, black top, ‘black pants,-the man in black.
And he starts walking toward the school grounds as soon as
dismissal occurs. | |

Right here at 12:35:36, you have Jacquintus -- I
mean, excuse me, Rasﬁawn Bradley coming out of the.

schoolhouse, khaki pants, white shirt,.got a hat on. We

“know that's him and that's what he's wearihg because he

says that's him, that's what he's wearing. He walks off
screen. And I'm going to speed it up until there you see
right there, right by the arch, him walking out with

Dagone Lance, the person he has identified as Dagone
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Lance, the person with the black top and the black pants.
They stand over there and they talk.

Right at this 'point up through that, 12:36:44,
we have Derell Green céme out of the schoolhouse wearing a
camo jacket, got a hoodie -- I don't know if that's part
of the jacket or something underneath. He's got his
school shirt hanging out underneath and wearing khaki
pants. And he ‘goes over and hé joins his friend Dagone
Lance, who he had left that morning and whb is waiting for
him as school let's out. They get together and they start
moving towafd Bonds Avenue. ‘

And then right there by the arch you'll see
Antonio Smallé*Heyward wearing khaki pants, 'a dark top,
but unlike Derell, he's got a darker top and he doesn't
have his'shirt hanging out' from underneath his poat. He
heads on over and he joins up with the other group. And

then they don't walk off, they stand there and they're

.waiting.

And what are they waiting for? This is what
they're waiting for right here: ‘Taron Maybank and his
friend Jacquintus Washington. Although they're not
waiting for Jacquintus, they're waiting for Taron.v

And just as soon as those two pass by, they're

not waiting anymore, are they? They drop in right behind

them. And you can see Jacquintus and Taron together.
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They continue walking down Bonds, 12:38:14.
Then about 20 seconds behind them now there are

four folks. And I know that this is hard to see. It's a

better image on the actual computer itself. I apologize

for our multimedia system in this courthouse, it was
obsolete when we got it, but you got Jacquintus, you've
got Derell right there, Dagone, and Antonio _
Smalls-Heyward. And we know that also because of Antonio
and Rashawn's testimony:

So they are walking down Bonds behind the victim
and his friénd. And there'sVa little jump of about 15
seconds because this is a motion-activated camera.

And now you see them waiking back the other way.
You've got Rashawn Bradley there in his white shirt.‘
Right behind him you'Ve got Antonio Smélls—Heyward’in his
dark top and khaki pants. No white ring around the
midriff like Derell Green.

And if you recall when Rashawn testified, he
said that they were following along behind them. He sees
Dagone pass something to Derell. He asked him what it
was, he wouldn't tell him, he says, "Back off." And,
ladies and gentlemen, this is where they're backing off.

Then just a couple of seconds iater they're
sitting there watching what is going on down that way and

then you see a third person come in. That person,. all
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black, black top, black bottom, Dagone Lance. They
continue walking and they get -- it looks like maybe
they've gone . across Bonds Avenue. At this point this car
right here, thaF is tﬁe car belonging to Vadrein Simmons.
You notice this person here. I'm going to back
it up a little bit. Don't know who this person is, but
see that person turn ——‘theyfré»walking straight ahead and
then that'persdn turns around and is looking back towards
Bonds Avenue, and that's because that person has heard the
shots.
And then T know you can't seé it ffom that
chair -- that's why I got you up and had you stand in
frontf—— at 12:39:55, you see the fellow —- this is-
Ms. Kaylyn Heyward's car right there -- you can see the

fellow jumping over the fence. You don't —-- you get a

fleeting glimpse of him, but one thing that you can tell

from this video, ladies and gentlemen, is that person is
not wearing all black. That peréon has at least
light¥éolored pants on;

And by this time, ladies ahd gentlemen, Larry
Taron Maybank is in the throes of death.

You can kill that.

And who is that person jumping over that fence?
That person is Derell Green. You know that from the

testimony of Jacquintus Washington. You know that from
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the testimony of Ms. Simmons. You heard that froﬁ the
testimony of Ms. Heyward. You also know that because
Derell said it in”his own statemeht, that afterfhe»Shot
the boy, he- ran and jumped over a ébuple of fences.

And finally we come to-the defehdant's |
cénfession. I know that YOu would have likédnto Have seen

that interview video. I‘Wouldfhave liked to have seen

that interview videotape. But the fact of the matter is

it wasn't. - And the fact that it wasn't does not mean that
yoﬁ can't consider it. The judge will charge you £hat if
you find beyond a reasonable doubt that Derell. Green was
read and understoodAhis rights and thét the statements he
gave‘wereAnot the product of.police duress or fhreats or .
coercion or promises of leniency or reward, then you can

conSLder those statements:along with all the other

. evidence in this case.

I would submit that even without the confession

you have ample evidence to.convict this defendant of

" murder.

But the evidence you have heard in this case

indicates that he was read and understood his rights. The

.evidence that you have heard in this case does not

indicate that the police forced him or threatened him or
coerced him or promised him to get him to talk. They use

tactics, sure, they do. It's done in every case, I don't
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care if you're 14 or 18 or 29 or 40 or 75. Ladies and

- gentlemen, most defendants do not walk in off the street,

people say hey, write, wrlte,fwrlte, write. Okay, now
give me your confession. It just doesn t happen like
that. It's a process The process usually takes place as
it did w1th Derell Green in this case and it did w1th just

about every witness in.this case. Cops brlng them in,

1l talk topthem, they lie to the CcopSs. Cops confront them

with the evidence, that they're,lying,'that they know

they're lying, you can tell the truth, and most of them

come around and tell the truth. And tactics are okay. If

- you couldn't use tactics youfd never get anybody to

. confess to anything

In this case, when they 1nterv1ewed Derell

followed that same pattern Oh, yeah after school I was

| walking down Bonds Avenue alone, I heard gunshots, I ran.

Well, the police knew that that was a bunch of

hooey. They had talked to Jacquintus Washington.

“Jacquintus Washington had identified him as the shooter.

They .had the video from Daniel Jenkins Academy. They knew

. he was not:by himself. They had the statement of Shalaine

Jenkins at the time that he had had a'gun when he went to
school with him that morning. And they go in there and
they say, "Derell, you're lying to us. We know you're

lying to us and this is why we know you're lying to us."
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And Detective Sturkie, who does use the fatherly

technique —-— you know, sometimes you catch flies with
honey, sometimes with vinegar -- but that's the tactic he
used. . '"Derell, I know you want to tell me something. I

can tell you're not telling me something. You just need

to tell the truth. I know -- we know you haven't told the

truth and I know you want to tell the truth. You just

need to teli the truth. It will make you feel better."
Nothing wrong with that. And Derell tells them the truth.
"You know, was it girls, was it money, was it drugs? Come

on, Derell, just tell the truth. It will make you feel

'better."

And on cross-examination they have made mention

of the hours and hours énd hours that .Derell Green was

: ihterrogated._ To tell you the truth, Derell Green was

inter;ogated for about 20 to 25 minutes. He got down to

~ the police station -- he was in custody longer than that,

don't get me wrong.® He was in custody much longer than

‘that, but he wasn't being actively.interrogated.

They .did not go in and interrogate him, talk to

- him until 3:47 p.m. when he was read his rights. At 3:55,

- he was giving that first statement that he was lying

about.
And basically all Kramitz is doing is asking him

questions and taking down what he says. He's not
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threatening him, he's not telling him what to put down.

Believe me, if -he was telling him what to put
down, he wouldn't'have got that statement. He would have
'got a confession right off the bat.

So he reall? wasn't interrogated during that
whole process, even though he took like an hour, hOur and
a half just to write it7all down. He asked him al
question, he'd answer it, but there was certadainly no undue
pressure being put oh Derell Green at that point. |

He finishes that probably about 5:30 and then
Derellfs basicélly sitting in there by himself from about
5:30 to‘7, about an héur and a half, when Sturkié and

Miller go in there. "And at that point he is being

- interrogated. He's lied, they know he's lied, they've

told him they know he's lied, they,Can see thaﬁ,he wants

to tell the truth and they give him a little bit of

kindness and he tells the truth.

And what he says in his confession is pretty

much established by all the other evidence you've heard in

this case from the other witnesses, with the exception of

him saying. that he hid this pistol at an abandoned house
and then went and got it when Taron mean mugged him. And
he said that for one reason: 'Becauée he didn't want to
get his buddy Dagone in trouble. Because Dagone wés the

one who had that gun and Dagone was the one that was with
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him that morning and Dagone was the one that met him when
school was over and Daqoﬁe‘was the one that gave him that
gun. \

Now I'd like to take this opportunity to —- this
will be the ohly opportunity I will have to speak to you
and - I don't know what the defense may say to you, but I
can anticipate some of the things. They -have pointed out
there is no DNA in this case. Well,,fhat’s true,_there is
no DNA in this case.. It's ﬁof a DNA case.

I know DNA miraculously solves everything on TV.
In the real world, it very seldom does.

And in this case -- usually in a DNA case you
have a crime scene and at @ crime scene there will be some
fype of biological evidence which was left there by the
suspect that you can develop a DNA profile from and then
you will get blood or saliva from that suspect and yéu'
compare the DNA.

. Well, what are you going to compare it to in
this case? There's no evidence in this cése that there
was any physical contact whatsoever: between Taron Maybank
and Derell Green. None. No fight, no touching. Noﬁe.
When you walk up behind somebne and shoot them-in the
back, there's not going to be any DNA at the crime scene.

Now, it's possible that you can get DNA from a

~gun. Not very often, but it happens occasionally. But




596

10

11

12

13

14 .

15

lo

17

18

19

20

21
22
23

24

- 25

759

we've got no gun. And we've got no shell casings because
it was a revolver. And we've got no camouflage jacket to
test. So it's just not a DNA case. But because there is
no DNA does not mean that he'é not guilty of murder.

And the same is true for the gunshot residue.
There were three of them sent up there and none of them
were stitivé. 'And you heard the analyst testify that
it's easy to get on you, but it's easy to come off. And
you also -- and I ﬁlayed part of a -~ there's two videos
from Daniel Jenkins. The second one that was introduced

hasfsbme footage from the inside when Derell Green's

. leaving school. And it's interesting because you can see

as he's leaving'school; putting a glove on his right hand.
And in hisAfirst statement- that he gave to Detective
Kramitz, the .last question, What "did you do when you got
home? Washed my hands.” |

The fact that the gun was not found. That's
true, the gun was not: found. That may be for a number Qf
reasons. Maybe Derell Green did throw it where he said he -
threw it, but the problem is, he threw it into a public
area, in a cut-through in a neighborhood and it wasn't
searched until.houré after the shooting and hours after he
ditched the gun. . So he could have very well put the gun
or thrown the gun into that field and somebody else comes

along later and says, oh, look what I've got, a gun. Or
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he could have been not telling the truth about it. Maybe
he gave the gun to somebody else.

Maybe he wasn 't telllng the truth about the camo
jacket, about burning it. The fact that the camo
jacket -- when Detective Kramitz was testifying today and
he was asked,‘ypu know, something about them finding a-:
camo Jacket while they were searching his residence. And
Detective Kramitz wasn't over there and didn't participate
in the search and the.detective who did participate in the
search told them it was not the same kind of jacket that
was on the video. And that may have been true, and is
true, but they still should have gotten it. I agree with
that. 'At least could have taken a picture of it so you
could have seen. . That was just a bone.

But, ladieswand gentlemen, that!does not relieve
him of respon51blllty for ‘what he did.

In conclu51on, when you put all of thlS
together, the testimony of Jacquintus Washington, Rashawn
Bradley, Antonio Smalls-Heyward, all of whom identified
Derell Green as the shooter, Vadrein Simmons  and Kaylyn
Heyward identifying the perSon wearing the jacket they saw
him wearing when he came out of school as the person
running'froﬁ.the scene of the shooting with the gun in
hand, and the testimony of Shalaine Jenkins together with

the videotape from Daniel Jenkins Academy and the
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statement from the defendant's own mouth, you know that
Derell Green had a beef with Taron Maybank." o
You knoﬁ that on February the 5th, 2010, he
decided he was going to settle the score. You know that
he took that pistol with him when he went to school that
morning from the statement of Shalaine Jenkins and from

his own statement. You know that he gave that pistol to

‘Dagone Lance to:hold‘fo; him while hé was at school. He

- was with'Daqonexin'the motning, Daqoﬁelsitting there

waiting for him to-get out of‘school}.

You know fhat Dereli‘Green sat there and.waited -

for Taron Maybank td come out of school and then dropped

in behind him just as soon as he passed and you know that

Derell and his buddies followed Taron and Jacquintus down

Bonds Avenue.

You know-that Daqone_péssed that gun to Derell.
You know from-thatlvideo thaf the other three retreated
back up to the school énd Derell Green walked up behind
Taron Maybank, pulled thét gun out and without saying a
word shot Taron Maybank in the back and killed him and
that he died as a result of gunshot wounds inflicted by
this defendant.

So, ladies and gentlemen, don't judge him
because of his age, judge him because of what he did to a

human being. Because what he did was nothing more than
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planning to carry out an execution.

Do not give him a free pass. You don't get a
free pass for murder. And what he did was commit murder,
premeditated murder, and I would‘ask you to find him
gﬁilty for what he did.

: | Thank you.

MS. EHRLICH: At the beginning of this trial I

asked all of you to imagine what it's like to be 14, and I

think we got a little bit of help from that from Antonio
when he was on the stand. You saw him in here. He was

nervous, mumbles a lot, and kind of has a child-like

-demeanor.

Now I want you to:imagine Antonio handcuffed to
a chair for hours, isolated from his mother for hours,
questioned -- whether or not you call it an interrogation
or. just questioning -- for hours. He could barely take a
few questions from Mr. DuRant in the courtroom. How do
you think a kid like Antonio would do in a police station?
He's not going to fare that well. And Derell Green didn't
do that well when he was at the police station. Not as an
eight grader up against the North Charleston Police
Department.

He's arrested and taken from his home. He is

walked down a hallway in the detective division and he's

put in a room and he's handcuffed to a chair. And if you
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look up from your chair into the corner, tﬁere's a camera,
but it's covered with a styrofoam bowl. And imagine the
thoughts that come in your head. Why is that camera
covered? What are they going to do to me? Shouldn't that
camera be on? |
Théfe'sino clock in the room as if fhere's no
concept of time for you and that's when the police come in

and start doing things-the way North Charleston likes to

do it.

So Deétective Kramitz comes in and starts
questioning him, and Derell tells him the truth. He says,
"I was there, i was on Bonds Avenue." He was on Bonds
Avenue when a shooting happened and he ran and jumpéd a

fence and he ran through yvards. He says he didn't do it

because that's the truth.

The problem is is that's not the truth that
North Charleston wanted. They wanted the truth to be what
they wrote in‘his second statement, that he woke up one
morning, decided to shoot a kid that he barely knew over a
gold chain that there's been no-proof even existed. And
he did it in broad daylight right after school let out so
that there's plenty of people to see him there to do it.
And he does it three minutes after skipping through the
courtyard. |

It doesn't make any sense. The least they could
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do is come up with a better story. But these aren't
Derell Green's words. These are the words of Detective
Sturkie.

Sturkie was here today. He admits that he never
told Derell he could have his mother there, that police
policy would cause that interview to stop if Derell asked
for his mother. He admitted that it would be to his
advantage to not have Derell ask for his mother. And he

told us today that he went in there knowing what he wanted

the truth to be. That anything less than Derell saying,

"I'm the shooter," was not going to be enough for him.

So he goes in there. You all saw him walk in,

“he's a big guy, and he starts telling Derell, "You're

lying." He's not looking for anything more than the

‘statement that he wants. And when he's .not -getting the

statement, he starts throwing stuff out there. He starts
offering up a story. He starts giving reasons fof why
Derell wanted to shoot Mr. Maybank.

He gives him a story of you were intimidated,

right, and then starts giving him options: It's about

'girls, money, drugs. And you heard him say that he put it

all out there for Derell to choose from. He gave him the

material, that's what he said today, and then as the tears
started coming to Derell's eyes, Derell starts to change

his story.
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All that police department cared about was

breaking him down. They wanted to close their case

" quickly and move on. And to do that they needed that-

child to say that he did it. And so they pushed him and
they isolated him for hours, at least five hours. He's
away from his mom, handcufféd to a chair, isolated in that
room with this weird bowl covering a camera, and the only
peéple you see are cops coming in and out trying to talk
to you. And he said whatever he needed to to get out of
there because anything was going to be better than
spending one more minute cuffed to that chair.

Now there's a théme in this story, and I'm not

talking about he'é 14 years old. I'm talking about the

first statement you give is just never the truth. There's

a pattern in this case of people changing one statement to
the statement that they want. = It started with the police
and then-it happened in couft with the sélicitor. They
said, okay, tell-us your story, but no, you're wrong, we
want this story, you start standing over them until ydu
get the answers that you want.,

Let's talk about Jacquintus Washington. He
tells the police that he heard the shots and he ran, that
he didn’t see the shooter. And he goes to the station, he
writes a statement. That's what he tells them.

Tt's funny, though, they don't let him leave,
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they kept him there. And he doesn't go up to them and

say, "Excuse me, I'd like to tell you what really
happened."” No, they come back to him. And it's Sturkie
again, back on him to make sure that he tells the truth.

But- the truth is what Sturkie decided it was. So they

start putting préssure on him, trying to make him feel

bad.
And Jacquintus knows that he‘éaw this kid he

knows from West Surrey on Bonds Avenue. And he might have

' said that-he didn't really know him that well; but we kﬁow

that he then said, "Yeah,'I §ee him around, I see him five
times," and he knew where he lived. 'He knew him well
enough. . U a

And the shooting happens Quick. This isn't
something that happened over a period of minutes, it wés a
matter’'of seconds. And he didn't have time to stop, turn
around, look and then rUn‘again.“'He wants: to think that
that's what he 'did, and I think he probably truly believes
that,fhat's what happened, but that's hot what happened.

You got statement number one ffom him, I didn't
see it, I hear the shots .and I ran. Then he gave
statement number two: I heard one shot, I turned around,
I saw another shot} and then I turned and ran. Then he
said in here, Well, I heard one shét, I turned around;

then I turned back around and then I heard more shots.
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And then when questioned more, he went back to statement
number two.
And I don't think that Mr. Washington was here

to lie at all. I think his friend got shot. I think he

‘saw Derell Green on Bonds Avenue and he assumed that

Derel; was‘the,shooter.‘ And don't think that the.police
didn't éncourage him along with that assumption. But
that's all it wés Qas an assumption. | -4

| Maybe they got that from Shalaine Jenkins. I
don't know. She's the girl who came in here and denied
everythiﬂgf She said,."That's not my étatement.* And I
ddn't khow what she said to the police. I don't know if
she said thét, I don't know if the police just put that
dowﬁ,there; nobody really knows. But what we do know.is .
that in‘hei'statément she says that she was walking with
another boy, not just Daqgone Lance, not just Derell Green,
but another kidunamed~Jacquan. All right. We don't know

what Shalaine's saying, let's talk to Jacquan. Jacquan

-wasn't here. Maybe that's because what Shalaine said or

didn't Say in that statement isn't true.

Now, after they've gotten those statements
toéether and they've gotten Derell's statement together,
they decide”that they need to continue to build that.

Weli, word travels fast iﬁ North Charlestén,

especially when you're in school, and we know that
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everybody was talking about this case, that everybody knew
Derell had been charged. Wordlwas out. We heard it from
Rashawn, we heard it from: Antonio. -I think even Detective
Kramitz said people were.talking about it., .So everybody
knew Derell was charged, and e&erybody knew what the
rumors were, and what the police were saying about it.

So after a week passes, .they get Rashawﬁ out of
school and they get Antonio out of school because they're

on the video that the police have had now for a week and

" not bothered to talk to them yet. And I guess at some

point they're like, Yeah, let's get statements from them,
too. Let's'build our case‘up. So they take them to the
station and Rashawn.gives a statement; And he says, "I
didn't see it, I only heard the shots. I didn't see the
shooter." | :

But that wasn't the truth the police wanted to

. hear. I would not be surprised if they showed him the

statement they took from Derell and they questioned him
and questioned him and finally Rashawn goes with it; he

gives them what they want to hear. They get something

about Mook or Dagone Lance passing the gun. He sees one

shot, then turns and runs. .And for them, it sounds good.
He doesn't sign a statement, but he makes sure that he
gives a statement later on to the Solicitor's office right

before trial.
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. The same thing happens with Antonio. He says,

"I heard the shots, but I didn't see anything." So the

detectives keepxhouhding'him,_making'feel bad that the kid
he knows as Tee was killed. And I wouldn't be surprised

if they showed him the statement they took from Derell

- Green.

We know from Antonio's-own mouth that he had
already heard stuff about this. He already knew Derell

was locked up and he knew him telling the police whatever

‘théy‘wanted»to hear wasn't going to put Derell in more

trouble. QSo he doées what he's supposed to, he’gives'them

a statement and'heAtells them that he guesses the gun came

-from Mook, but he doesn't know because that's not what

really happened.

| You‘saw‘Antonio in here. I think he told us he
géts easily.confuéed-and admits his memories aren't clear -
and he's confused_with-éll the'details of what happened.

'He says in his statement that there was some
type of mean mugging going on between Derell and Larry
Maybank, but then heré couldn't remerber telling that to
the police.' And maybe he told them, maybe he didn't. I
could only imagine what it was like for him ét age 12
talking to the police.
I think that we had a front row of how

intimidation was used in this case. When Mr. DuRant
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wouldn't get what he wanted from a-withess, he'd walk

right up theére and stand in their face, blocked them from

-anybody else, stand right in front of them, try tovstand.

behind them until his words become their words. And if

that can héppen in this courtroom, imagine what could

~happen behind closed doors in a police station when

nobody's -looking?

~ Now, another interesting thing about Antonio.
You notice how Mr. DuRant spékevto him a little nicér than
ﬁaybe,some of the oﬁher witnesses, liké he was a little
bit younger? It's funny how it's okay to talk to him in

more simple language, but if you're3De£ell Green, that's

‘not the way it's~supposed to happén.' Treaf him like an

adult, question him just. like anybody else.

'And.the.intimidation didn't stop with just

: Antonio, It goés;op with Ms. Simmons. She's interviewed

4

by thé police'rightlafter the shooting and she gives the
most detailed description of the shooter and that
description includes dreadlocks.

But I guess the police didn't like her
description because they never went back to talk tQ her.
They never ‘showed her any photographs and they never
showed her the video. She didﬁ't see that video until‘she
met with the Solicitor's office to prepare her testimony.

And at that point she's shown the video for the first time
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and I'm sﬁ;e knows at this point that Derell Green is the
one charged ahdAhe's got a camo jacket on, according to
the video. And, I mean, camo jééket/’Ms. Simmons, ydu;ve
got to be wrong about the hair. Don't you know?: Dq,yoﬁ
see the camo jacket?

I mean, I‘guess she's~not‘allowed to have her
own version of what happened if it doesn't fit.with the
State’s.théory; And despite,néver:chAAging.hef |

description;forla year'and‘a half/_a year and-a half, and

|| not changihg’her‘description a couple. of weekg ago. when wé
-.spoke to‘hét and she told'usldreadlocks,nall of a sudden
:She'gets'én‘that'stand and is tdld‘camo‘ja¢ket, camo'

' jacket, and she changes her story.

Ms. Heyward came in here. And I don't think-

‘Ms. Heyward has anything to'gain:from.this case either,‘

but you've got to wonder whyﬁsomébody who says‘theyrsaw a
gun and. a person running from a gun right around the

school where your mother is a teacher you don't say

~anything to anybody aboﬁt-it. You don't call the police,

you don't givé‘a statement, and it's a year and‘a half -
later that you start identifyiné camo' jackets.

| If these conflicting statements weren't enough,
this case is plagﬁed by police who not only rush to judge
Derell Green, decided he was a killer, but they clearly

don't know how to investigate a case and preserve evidence
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or keep their own stories straight.
You heard from Hallman who was from Crime Scene.

He says he did a presumptive test on a black shirt taken

- from a search at West Surrey Avenue. But he doesn't write

a reporﬁ, which apparently is not that unusual in North

Charleston. And Detective Kramitz used informatibn saying
' that that clothing was Derell Green's and it tested

" positive in a different coﬁrt hearing. That's not true.

~ You. had Mr. Thomas, the retired forensic case
agent. He didn't even'know how many evidence placards
were ouﬁ there on the scene. He told us about how he sent
blood, fingernail‘qlippings,vhair,‘a'phone to SLED for
testing. All the:stuff came from the victim. - But he-
didn't send ény of . Larry Maybank'é clothing for testing.
And I'm not talking about DNA testing. I'm talking aboﬁt
testing for some evidence of where that gun was fired
from.. They didn't do‘it; 'And he Said, Well, if I'm not

told to by the detective then I'm not going to:-do it, and

'responsibility would have fallen on Detective Kramitz.

They never sent the clothing. They never sent any
clothing to be tested for residue. They never sent the
camo jacket, the khaki pants, the black hoodie, nothing.

| Then you've got Daqone Lance coming,into the
station at the same time as Derell Green, their number one

suspect, and they fail to take his clothing to test it for.
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any sort of residue.
You've got this whole story about a gold chain.
Nobody knows anything to look for the chain.

Now Detective Kramitz is the lead detective in

"this case and he came in here, told us how careful he was

when he read Derell Ggeen'his Miranda;rights,-butthe'

didn't document it in-his reports. - You notice he kept

saying things like, Weil, that's just my style, that's how

I always‘do:it.‘ I'm sorry. If you're going to charge

somebody with murder;.yqu,might want to document what you

did.

He‘didn't:document it becaﬁse he treated him
like any“other person. ﬁediﬁterrogated him, read him his
rights just :like he was a much older individual. -

He said he never asked if Derell wanted his
mother. He said he aésumed he knew he could ask.. He

éssumed'that because he didn't want to have to stop his

 interview.

He also ignored that Derell had told the truth
in the first statement, that Mook didn't go to school,
that'he was on Bonds Avenue, that ian-through the fences._
He ignored that and instead he sent Sturkie in.

He did nothing to videotape the‘interrogation
that lasted from 2:30 until well into the night. We kﬁow

that Derell wasn't booked in until after one o'clock in
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the morning. That's a long time to be in a room.

And I don;t care if they're not required to do
the video, it would be really nice to know what happened
in that room, but they failed to do that.

They took no steps to follow up with Ms. Simmons
who gave the conflicting description.

They didn't have an officer document the search
of the house with photographs, what they found, what they
didn't find.

They could have gotten the names of those.
studeﬁts in .the vidéo and talked to them right away. They
had it right away. Instead they‘waited a week, time for
ringers to set in, people to get their storieé straighﬁ
and to listen to whét other people might be saying in the
streets. |

They didn't document the search of the gun.
There are no photographé'taken of the area searched. And
the explanation was given, well, it was dark and we
couldn't find the gun. Okay. Why don't ybu go back the
next morning and look for 'it? They never did that.

There was a camo jacket found in the house. 2And

"camo jacket" has probably been said almost as many times

as "video" in this case, and nobody took that jacket,
nobody tested it.

Therefs also a lack of documentation about all
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the details of this investigation. And Detective Kramitz
said tﬁat he does everything the éame way, he doesn't
include the details in his report, and we've just got to
trust that he did what he said he did even if he didn't
document it. o

Let's talk about the video. -

I heard some mention of a glove in closing, but
nobody said —-- none of the witnesses said anything about
Derell Green wearing a glove that day. You see something
in the videoAthrough‘thefschool. It's February. Most
kids are probébly carrying aréund'gloves..

Now we've watched that video many, many times,
and the video shows Derell Greén skipping out of school.
And I don't see how a kid skipping out of school three
minutes later turns into a cold blooded killer. And they
can say what they want about the video and what it proves,
but that shooting's not”dn the video.

And for the first.time today,. there's comments
about missiﬁg seconds from the video. 1I'll bet you watch
the video again and you'll‘never see Larry Maybank walk
past that treeline, but YOu will see Derell Green coming
from past the treeline and running, if you believe that
that's Derell Green based on‘all these identifications,
the camo jacket.

And maybe Larry Maybank didn't get down Bonds
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Avenue quite as far as everybody wants you to believe.

You can say what you want about the video, but
the video proves nothing about the shooting.

What you do see on the video is somebody rqnning
scared, because that's what you do when shots are fired:
You run because you're scared and you don't want to get
killed yourself. And Derell told the police fiom the very

beginning that that's what he did, that he ran down Bonds

~Avenue because of the shooting. He ran straight home, he

doesn't ditch a gun in a field, and within hours the
police have him and he doesn't have a chance.

You can't really trust what's been presented
here today, or all week. You can't ignore that there was-
intimidation of witnesses, bad police work, lengthy
interrogations and isolation, and a lot of conflicting and
changing stories. And you can't hide from what you saw
from Antonio Smalls, his demeanor, his uncomfort (sic),
his childish nature-at‘age 14, the same age that Derell
was when he was handcuffed to that chair for hours.

If the police and the State really want to be
honest, I don't think they believg’their own nonsense
either. Because if they believe that Dagone Lance --
Mook -- gave Derell Green a gun seconds before a shooting
and told his friends to back up, you better believe they

would have charged that kid with murder under the hand of
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one is the hand of all. And ybu know Dagone Lance is not
charged with murder. Why? Because they don't believe
their own witnesses. If the State doesn't believe it for
Dagone, how are you going to believe it for Derell? If
that stuff was. true, Dagone would have been arrested for
murder instead of walking on the streets on probation.

I told»you this case was abéut assumptions and
changing stories. It's also about mistakes. You heard
from Detective Kramitz today, three times that he used
information that was not true, twice before a judge and

under ocath. Once he lied in a proéecutive summary that he

_prepared saying that Derell Green gave two incriminating

statements, two.statéments implicating himself. We know
that's not true. He gave one statement. The other one he
denied it. I asked him if that's ndt true, he said that -
he made a mistaké.

He lied under oath about the.timing of Derell's

- statements. He said that they were given one right after

the other. We know from his testimony today that there
were over three hours between those statements. When he
was questioned about that he said not -- you know, "I made
a mistake."

He lied previously under ocath about Derell
Green's clothing being positive for gunshot residue. We

know that's not true. And his response was, "I made a
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mistake." That's not good enough. Because if after today
he made a mistake, it's going to be too late for Dereil
Green. |

Thank you. '

THE COURT: Madam’FOrelady, ladies‘ahd4gentlemen
of the jufy; the charge on the law will probably take
about- 20 minutes, so we can take a five or ten-minute |
break if anybody would‘like‘to at this time or we can
continue’dn. |

Does anybody want to take a break for about ten
minutés? If youidé, raise your right hand. |

(No response.) |

- THE COURT: All right. Having no'one.raise
their right haﬁd, I will give you the charge on the law in
this case. ’ S | |

I'11 give you a copy of these instructions in
written form. You may refer to the instructions to guide

your decision-making. You must consider the instructions

.as a whole and not follow some and ignore others. Please

return the instructions to:the Court, Madam Forelady,
after you have rendered a verdict. ‘
I instruct you and emphasize that the fact that

the defendant has not elected to testify on his own behalf

is not a factor to be considered by-you in any way in your

deliberations and in your consideration of the question of
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guilt or innocence of the defendant. It must not be
considered by you in any manner whatsoever. A defendant
has the constitutional right to remain silent and the

assertion of this right must not be considered by you in A

- your deliberations.

I repeat, under yoﬁr oath, you are to draw no

conclusion whatsoever from the fact thét the,défendant‘in

this case did not teétify. The fact that the defendant
did not testify_shduid not be even discussed in the jury

room. The burden of proof, as I stated tdvyOu, is on the

State. The defendant's not requiréd -to prove his |

innocence. The burden'oftproof remains on the Stafe to
prove guiit beyond a reasonable doubf. .

| ‘ Now, ifve permitted you to take notes during the
course of the/tiial. You've not been obligated to take

notes, but if you have takénAnotes, these notes should be

. used only as memory aids.-

You should not give your notes precedent over
your independent recollection of the evidence. If you've
chosen not to make notes, you should rely on your

independent recollection of the proceedings and you should

not be influenced by the notes of other jurors.

I emphasize that notes are not entitled to any
greater weight than your recollection or impression of

each juror as to what the testimony may be.
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These are your personal notes. You may destroy
them or the Court will‘destroy_them for you if you so
request. . |

’ Now, as to these indictments, the defendant Has
entered a plea of not guilty which placeé upon the State
the burden of provihg the defendant quilty. |

A person chargeduwith committing a criminal
offense in South Carolina is never required to prove
himself innocent. I charge you it's a vital important
rule of law of evidencé that a defendant in a criminal
trial, no matter how great‘or serious may be the offense
with which he is charged, must always be. presumed innocent
until his Quilt-ﬁas been proven beyond a reasonable doubt.

This présumption of innocence remains with the

defendant'at all times, from the moment of his appearance

in the court, throughout the trial, until you, the jury,

-upon the testimony and evidence presented, reach a verdict

of guilty beyond a reasonable doubt.

It's -the solemn duty of the jury, if not firmly
convinced of this guilt beyond a reasonable doubt, to
acquit the defendént. So the burden of proof is upon the
State to establish by evidence to yoﬁr satisfaction guilt
beyond a reasonable doubt.

Now, what is reasonablé doubt? ' Reasonable doubt

is the kind of doubt that would cause a reasonable person
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to hesitate to act. If you have such a doubt as to the
guilt of the defendant, he'd be entitled to a verdict of
not guilty.

Reasonable doubt may arise from evidence which
is in the case or from the absblute lack of'evidence in
the case. Yoﬁ alone must make a determinatién of whether
or not reasonable doubt exists as to the‘guilt of the
defendant. | ‘ |

- The term-"reasonable doubt" should be given its
everyday plain and ordinary meaning, proqf»beyond a .

reasonable doubt is proof that leaves you firmly convinced

of the defendant's guilt.

Thefe are very few things in thié World‘that we
know with absolute certainty, énd~in criminal cases the
law does not require proof that Qve;comes every possible
doubt. 1If based on the consideration of the verdict (sic)
you)re firmly convinced that the defendant's guilty of the
crime charged, you mﬁst find him guilty. On the other
hand, if you think there's a real possibility that he's
not guilty,‘you must give him the benefit of the doubt and
find him not guilty. | |

The evidence from which you decide the facts

- consists of the sworn testimony, both on direct and

cross—examination, regardless of who called the witness;

the exhibits received into evidence; any facts which the
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lawyers have agreed to stipulate.

| What is not evidence? Certain things afe not
evidence. You may consider them -~ you may not consider
them in deciding what the facts are. i»will‘list them for
you. Arguments and étatements'by lawyers are not
evidence.‘ The lawyers are not witnesses. What they have
said in the opening .statement, closing arguments, andvat
other times ié intended to help you interpret the
évidence, but it is not evidence; .If the facts as you
remember them differ from the way the lawyers have stated
them, your memory controls.

Questions and objections by lawyers are not

evidence. Attorneys have a duty to their clients to

- object when they believe a question is improper under the

Rules of Evidence. You should ndt be influenced by the
objection or the :Court's ruling on the objection.
Testimony that's been exéluded or stricken ‘or that you've
been instructed to disregard is not evidénce and must not
be considered.

Anything you may have seen on television or read
in the paper or heard from others when court's not in

session 1is not evidence. You decide the evidence solely

© from the evidence presented in the trial.

Under. our Constitution and Code of Laws, only

you, the jury, can make the findings of facts in this
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case. I'm not permitted to indicate to you how I may feel

-about the testimony and evidence which has been presented,

and throughout this trial it's been my intention to be
fair and impartial towards each-of the parties involved.
| To determine the facts in this casé, you would
have to evaluate the credibility, which means the
believability, -of each witness. Some of the things you
may consider as -you decide whether or not to believe a

witness's téstimony'about}a‘particular matter include:

What was the manner and appearance of the witness who -

testified. Was she straightforward or. he straightforward

or hesitant in answering?
Second, was the testimony of the witness
consistent or inconsistent?- How did the witness come to
N ) A

know: the facts that he or-she testified to? Was the

person present during the incident? Did they- happen on

_ the scene after.it occurred?

‘Is there some reason a witness wants to give
testimony which would help or hurt one side or the other?
In other words, was the witneés biased or prejudiced?

Was the testimony of the witness strengthened or
weakened by other testimony and eviaehce? The duration
and length of time from the alleged actsfwhen they were
reported, you may also consider whether this would weaken

or strengthen the memory. All prior statements made, as
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to whether they're consistent or inconsistent. .
You may believe as much or as little of each

witness's testimony as you think proper. You may believe -

the testimony of a single witness against .that of many

witnesses or just the opposite. You do not. determine the
truth merely by counting the number of witnésses presented
by each side.

Throughout this'process you have one objeCtive:
To seek the .truth regardless of its source.

As I stated earlier, the defendant is not

 obligated to offer-any testimony. The same constitution

and laws which designate and make you finders of the

'facts[ as I just expléined, also make me the sole

instructor of. the law.  You should accept statements of

the law as I give them to you. Thé'attorneys are not the

~instructors of the law.- Please base your decision-making

on what the law is and not what you think the lawlshou1d
be. .

There are two types of evidence which are
generally presented during .a trial: Circumstantial
evidence and direct evidence. |

Direct evidencé‘is the testimony.of a person who
asserts and claims'to have actual knowledge of a Eact,

such as an eye witness.

Circumstantial evidence is proof of a -chain of
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facts and circumstances indicating the existeénce of a
fact.
‘'The law makes absolutely no distinction between

the weight or value to be given to either direct or

circumstantial evidence, nor is a greater degree of -

certainly required of circumstantial evidence than of

direct evidence. You should weigh all the evidence in the

case; and when you conﬁest‘a’factual”issue, you méy have
some direct. and:some circumsténtial evidence. |

To determine the facts in the case, you will
have to evaluate the crédibility[‘whiéh means the
believability, of each witness.

| The Rules of. Evidence ordinarily‘do_not permit

witnesses to testify to opinions or bonclusions. An
egception.of'this rule exists for witnesses that we call
QXpe;t‘Witnesées. A witneés who, by education and
expérience,‘has become expert in some ért, science, or.
profession'may have an opinion as to the subject the
Witneés claims to be an expert in, and may also give the
reésons for the dpinion} o

In this case; we had.a pathologist, trace
evidence expért and a ballistics expert. |

You should consider any expert opinion given by
a witness, and like any ofher evidence, give it the weight

you think it deserves. If you decide that an expert
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‘witness's opinion is not based on sufficient education and

experience, or if you decide that the reasons given in
support of that opinion are not sound, or the opinion's
outweighed by other evidence, you may disregard the -
opinidn entirely.

A statement alleged to have made by the
defendant has been admitted into evidence in this case.
While the Court has determined that’the statement is
admissible, I instruct you that you make the ultimate
decision-as to whether or not thé defenaant made the
statement. If the defendant did make the statement, you
must determine whether the statement was made by the
defendant voluntarily and of his own free will. This
means that the statement was not caused by pressure,
force, fear, threats, coercion, or intimidation, or by
hope or a promise of leniency or reward of any kind. In
determining whether the statement was voluntary, you
should .consider both the characteristics of the defendant
and the details of the questioning. Some of the facts

that you must consider are the age of the defendant, the

defendant's education or lack of education, the

- defendant's mental ability or capacity, the defendant's IQ

or intelligence, the defendant's background and
environment, the place and length of detention, the nature

of the questioning, and the advice or lack thereof of his
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or her constitutional rights, including but limited to the
right to remain silent, any statement may be used against
him in a court ‘of law, the right to have a lawyer present,
if he could not afford a lawyer, a lawyer would be
appointed to represent him without cost, that he could _
stop making the statement at any time. fou must carefully

consider all the surrounding circumstances before you give

.any weight to an aileged statement.

The State has the burden of proving beyond a

teasonable doubt.that the alleged~statement was voluntary.

If you determine it was, you may give the statement any
further consideration that you deem proper. You must
decide what weight, if ény, should be given to the alleged
statement. If you defermine,the alleged statement is not
the free and voluntary statement of the défendant, ydu
should not consider the statement at all.

An issue in this cése is the identification of
the defendant as the person who committed the cfime '
chargéd. The-State has the burden of proving identity
beyond a reasonable doubt. You must be satisfied beyond a
reasonable doubt of the accuracy of the identification of
the defendant before you may convict the defendant.

Tdentification testimony is an expression or
belief or impression by a witness. You must determine the

accuracy of the identification of the defendant. You must
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consider the believability of each identification witness
in the same way as any other witness. You may consider
whéther a witness-had an adequate opportunity to observe
the defendant at the time of the offense. This would be
affected by things like how long or short a time was
available, how far or close the witness was, the lighting
conditions, and whether thé witnéss had to see or know the
peréon in the past. One again, I instruct you the burden
of prdof on the State extends to every element of the
crime charged and this'specifically includes the burden of
proving beyond. a reasonable doubt the identity of the
defendant as fhe person who committed the crime. After
examining the testimony if you have a reasonable doubt as
to the accuracy of the identification, you must find the
defendant not guilty.

\~

The defendént is charged with murder. The State

. must prove beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant

killed another person with malice aforethought. Malice is
hatred, 1ill will, or hostility towards another person. It
is the intentional doing of a wrongful act without just
cause or excuse with the intent to inflict an injury under
circumstances that the law will infer an evil intent.
Malice aforethought does not require that malice exists at

any particular time before the act is committed, but

malice must exist in the mind of the defendant just before

~
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and at the time the act is committed; therefore, there
must be a combination of previous evil intent and the act.
Malice aforethought may be express or inferred.

\
These terms "express"'and "inferred" do not mean different

‘kinds of malice but merely the manner in which malice may

be shown to exist. That is either by direct evidence or
by inference from the facts and circumstances which are
shown and proven. Express malice is shown when the person
speaks words'which express hatred or ill will for another
or when the person prepared beforehand to do the act which
was later accomplished; for example, lying in wait for a
person of,any other acts in preparation going to show that
the deed was within the defendant's mind would be express
malice. 4 a

Malice may be inferred from conduct showing a
total diéregard for human life. Inferred malice may also
arise when the deed is done;with a deadly weapon. A
deadly weapon is any article, instrument, or substance
which is likely to cause death or great bodily harm.
Whether an dinstrument has been used as a deadly weapon
depends on the facts and circumstances of each case. Thé

following examples of instruments which'may be deadly

weapons: A pistol, a shotgun, a rifle, a dirk, a dagger,

a knife, a slingshot, metal knuckles, a razor, gasoline, a

fire bomb or Molotov cocktail, and lighter fluid. A gun
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may be a.deadly weapon even if it's not operating.
Now, you've been selected as fair and impartial
jurors sworn to impartially try and determine the facts of

the case. And when you've complied with your oath to do

so, then no one would have a right to criticize your

verdict and you will have fully diséhargedﬂybur'dutytas
jurors. You're to decide this case according to the
testimony you've heard of the sworn WitnesseS‘along with
the other evidence introduced. I charge you as jurors,
you must decide the issues in this case without bias or
without prejudice to any party. Do not allow yourself to

governed by sympathy, by prejudice, by passion, by public

Aopinioﬁ, or any other arbitrary factor. ‘Both the State

and the defendant have a right to expect each of you will

g cérefully and impartially consider all the evidence in the

case and fOllow‘the law as I have explained it to you.
Nothing I may have said or done over the courSe“of this
trial has been in any way intended to express or suggest a

view of the case or an opinion as to the facts, the weight

of the evidence, the credibility of witnesses. If any of

"my acts or words so indicate, you're to disregard such and

form your own opinion.
Now, Madam Forelady, ladies and gentlemen of the

jury, I have prepared a verdict form and the verdict form

has the State of South Carolina versus Derell Green, the
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défendant, and has the case number and says, As to the
Indictment No. 2010-GS-10-08153, we, the jury, by
unanimous consent find the defendant, and I have guilty or
not guilty, a place,for the forelady to sign and the date.

.As the verdict form says, your verdict has to be

unanimous, all 12, of you have to agree,-and 1 would ask

you.to~respect each other's opinions, listen to each
otheriS"opinions. It's a collective reasoning process oOn
all 12 of you's part, and-'listen to it, review the

evidence, consider the evidence, and reach a fair and just

verdict.

Now, Madam Forelady, ladies.and gentlemen of the

jury,‘I'm.going'to ask you to do to the jﬁry room. You

-may take your notes. . However, Madam Forelady, please do -

-not begin your deliberations until the bailiff"bringsvyou ‘

the verdict form, the charge book, as wéll as all of the
exhibits that have beeﬁ preéented into evidence: And wheﬁ
he brings that to you, hé knocks on the door, and he will
tell you to begin y@ur deliberations. -i may haﬁe to bring
you back and chafge something I left out or correct some
error that I made, so I don't want you to begin your
deliberations if I have to do that.

If the three alternates would just keep your
seats, Madam Forelady, you and the other 11 jurors may

follow the bailiff to the jury room.
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(The jury left open court at approximately 3:55
p.m.) | |

THE COURT: - Any exceptions to the charge from
the State?

MR. DURANT: No, sir.

THE COURT: Any exceptions to the charge from
the defendant other than.the failure to charge voluntary
manslaughter?

MS. PROCTOR: No, Your Honor. ‘I need to
check -- I don't think you can charge weapon is malice
anymore.' I just need to check that on -- the computer
went down, but I know under. Belcher you can't use weapon
as malice under the new law. And I can get it in once my
computer comes back on. |

THE COURT: Get the computer up.

I think the old charge refers to malice as a —-
I'm sorry, what?

(Judge confers with the clerk.)

THE COURT: They can just'sit where they are for
just a minute, okay? I'll talk to them when I get through
with the charge.

THE CLERK: Yes, sir.-

- THE COURT: I think the old charge refer;ed to
the usé of a deadly weapon as implied malice and-I think

the new charge says to disregard that inferred malice may
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(The jury came into open court at approximately
6:40 p.m.)

THE CLERK: Jurors are allipresent, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank youlvery much.

Madame Forelady, I understand you've reached a

"verdict; is that correct?

THE JURY FORELADY: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Would you hand the verdict form to

- the bailiff, please?

Thank you very muéh;l

All fight. ‘Madamé Forelady, I have written on
the indictment form your vérdicf and I'm going to ask you-
to sign and date it today, August:25th, 2011. The bailiff
will ask you if you'll please sign your.name to it,-
please. |

(The forelady of the jury complies.)

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

The Clerk will publish the verdict.

THE CLERK: Staterf South Carolina, County. of
Charleston, the Court of General Sessigns of the Ninth
Judicial Circuit, Indictment No. 2010-GS-10-08153, the
State of South Carolina versus Derell Green. As to the
indictment of -- I'm sorry —-- as to Indictment No.
2010-GS-10-8153, we, the jury, by unanimous consent find
theldefendant guilty of murder.
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1 MS. EHRLICH: Nobody elsé; Your Honor.

2 THE COURT: Okay. I'll be glad to hear from you.

3 . I would be glad to hear anything Mr. Greeh would like to

4 tell me. ‘

5 MS. EHRLICH: Thank you, Judge. I am going to

6 advise him not to spéak today because:if;s an Appellate

7 issue. | |

8 THE COURT: I'm sorry,:what?

9 'MS. EHRLICH: I'm going to advise him not to speak
10 Lor address»the‘Court bécause’of Appellate issues.. But, I
11 - just for housekeeping in imposing a sentence, we would
12 ask that'yoﬁ givé him credit back to his original arrest
13 date when he was charged .in Family Court would haVe been

‘ 14 Febrﬁary 5th, the warrant wasn't served on him in adult
15  court until after we went through the waiver process'and I
16 don't wanté——

.ul7 THE COURT: February the 5th of when?
18 MS. EHRLICH: 2010.
19 THE COURT: Okay. -
20 MS. EHRLICH: And, Judge, I don't want to belabor
21 everything that you've already read in the sentencing
22 memorandum, but I do want to highlight éome things that I
23 think are important. I get, I guess, the position that,
24 you khow, he was just fourteen (14) and that doesn't
25 excuse the crime and certainly I don't think that anybody
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' 21
here is asking that he be excused for any type of
consequences.

He could have been charged only in Family Court. He
could have beén'sent to the Department of Juvenile JUstiéé
for a period not to exceed his twenty-first (21) birthday,
that didn't happen. He is in General Sessions Court and

is now facing thirty (30) to life and I certainly don't

‘thiﬁk that that is a light sentence.’ Given everything

that'I know about Derell, he is sixteen (16) yeafs old
now, was only in the eighth grade when he was arrested.
He had some difficulty, I think, untreaﬁed mental health
proble —-—= , k_x |
THE COURT: Well, tell me a little bit about your
personal experience with him. You probably know him about
as well as-anybody in this courtroom? '
MS. EHRLICH: T think I know him probably bette¥
than--- |

- THE COURT: You probably know.him as well as about

anybody in this ‘courtroom.

MS. EHRLICH: I do.

THE COURT: So tell me your experiences with him?
That is what I would like to hear, please?

. MS: EHRLICH: My experiences with him are that he
is scared. That every decision he has made since getting

here has been to try to protect his family. He is still



634

© 0 G o o W N R

NN NN R B R B b e
O = W N B O L ®Jd o0 s W N B O

22

scared that something will happen to them. My opinion is

that he is scared of whoever else is involved with this

‘because I don't think that Derell Green woke up one

morning and decided to plan on killing Larry Maybank. I
don't think that's what happened. He did-—-

THE COURT: You think he was put up to it by
someone else? ' ‘

MS. EHRLICH: -I-think that there~isfa ldt more ﬁd

tﬁis story that we'll probably never know the answer to

because I think people are scared. I think that the
. fifteen (15) year old who was charged only as an accessory

had a lot more to do with the situation and I can't for

the life of me understand why he wasn"t aiso held

- accountable for his actions.

THE COURT: I understand, but that's not the issue.
MS. EHRLICH: But, I,do.thinkithat there are other

individuals who are likely involved. I think there is a

E mentality in these neighborhoods that the older

individuals have some issue.  ‘He is from one neighborhood.
Mr. Méybank was from another neighborhood. Issﬁes between
those neighborhoods never started -- did not start with
.Deréll Green and they didn't start with Larry Maybank,
they started long.before they were probably even born.
But, I do think that there are older individuals

who have ﬁore involvement with this, people  that will
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never be held accountable. I think there is a mentality

that let's get these young kids to do things, they won't

. get into trouble——

THE COURT: You know, unless the community gets
involved aﬁd assist the police, it's going to\always be
that way.

MS. EHRLICH: I---

THE COURT: It was very obvious from the witness
that testified in the courtroom, I don't know how hostile
she was towards the system in general. I don't remember
her name.

MS, EHRLICH: I don't think it's just a hostility

- towards one individual, I think there is lot of fear. I
‘think -- when I have other people coming into my office

'about other cases, saying things about somehow applies to

this case that I can't possibly prove because nobody is
ever going to come forward and say, I think that is a
problem. I strongly believe that there afe older
individuals invdlved who put these kids up to doing things
thinking I won't get caught and if they get caught, they
are juveniles, nothing is realiy going to happen to them.
That's clearly not the case of Derell. He is soft
spoken. I have seen him at the Detention Center multiple,
multiple times over the past year and a half. He has had

minimal problems there. The guards fuss over him and ask
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me constantly when is Mr. Green going to Court? I hope
things work out for him. I think that he has impressed
upon them a different character than what was presented
during the trial. |

I think there is way more to him than, you know,
testimony that was heard in Court. I think that he
deserves an opportunity at some point to get out df

prison. He is quiet. I don't think he is a leader in

24

anyway. He will follow whoever is probably the loudest.

And, I think in this case he probably followed somebody

who led him down the path that cost him to be here today.

But, I certainly would ask the Court to consider

~his age. To consider the fact that at fourteen (14),

thirty (30) years is a very long time. It is twice as

'long as he has been alive. And, I think that that type

. sentence properly takes-into account everything related

him, everything related to the case, and some of the

of

to

inequitiés I think of how individuals are prosecuted. The

fact that there is probably somebody out there that nobody

will ever arrest in this case.

And I just think at some point, they got to him.

mean, he is charged as an adult and thirty (30) years is a

very long time. And, I ask that you take that into
consideration.

THE COURT: Okay. I understand and considering

I




O OV J o W NN

NONNNNN R Rl P s s s
Gl W NP O W ® O Jd e U W N R O

637
25

everything in the defense sentencing memorandum as well as

the statements on behalf of the victim's family and their
concerns which are legitimate concerns, also. I mark this
Defense sentencing memorandum as Court's Exhibit No. 1 and
the statements from the victim's family as Court's Exhibit
No. 2.
(WHEREUPON, Court's Exhibit No. 1 was marked for
identification and received into evidence.)
(WHEREUPON, - Court's Exhibit No. 2 was marked for
identification and received into evidence.)
THE CQURT: Anythihg else, Ms. Ehrlich?
MS. EHRLICH: No, Your Honor.
THE COURT: And, I'll again tell you I will be
happy for Mr. Green to say anything. I am not going to .
allow him to talk about the case. Anything he would like
to say to the Court concerning sentencing and senteﬁcing
alone, I will be glad to hear from him? I don't want him
not to say what he wants to say because of Appellate
purposes will not go into the drime.
MS. EHRLICH: Judge, I don't think that he is
necessarily comfortable speaking in Court.
"~ THE COURT: That's fine.
MS. EHRLICH: T know what he feels. I know that he
is——-

THE COURT: I mean, that's fine. I just want to
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afford him the opportunity.
MS. EHRLICH: If he could and if you have —- I

think more confidence in himself, I think if you'd ask

him---

VTHE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much. State
versus Derell Green indictment number 2010-GS-10-08153
convicted of murder by a jury that you -- I am sorry, was
there anything else the State wanted to say? I didn't
give you an opportunity to reply to anything the Defense
may have--- |

MR. DURANT: 1 think you have already written it
down now--—-

THE COURT: Pardon?

MR. DURANT: I said, I think you have already
written it down now, so I.willlbeAquiet. |

- THE COURT: Okay. All right. On the charge of
murder, the Defendant is sentenced to a term of forty (40)
years and I will give him credit for jail time since
February 5, 2010. Thank you very much.

MR. DURANT: Thank you, Your Honor.

***************End of transcr.ipt of record Rk h ok hhkhkkhhkkhRhkh
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IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE
NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

A

4

e [
b

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON ..\ 5 - =3

ANNE B. SEYMOUR, ) e
: )
PETITIONER, suiaeen -8 PH 30 Sk
i TR )
A JUVENILE B
JUVENILE PETITION
DERELL GREE

Address: MURDER

Date of Bzrth

A Child under Seventeen (17) Years of Age. DOCKET NO.: 2010-JU-10-. ‘%b ’

Anne B. Seymour, the petitioner, havmg sufficient knowledge to believe that a case has arisen

WhICh invokes the juvenile jurisdiction of the court alleges:

That the, above named juvenile resides i in or was found in Charleston County.

2. That the names and addresses of the child’s parents/guardlans/custodlans are as
foliows: : o
Name ' Relationship Address
Tamica Nelson Mother - Same as Juvenile
3. - The above named juvenile was a delinquent child, in that on or about February 5, 2010,

in Charleston County, South Carolina he did commit the offense of Murder in that he did,
feloniously, willfully and with malice aforethought, kill one Larry Taron Maybank, in
-violation of Section 16-3-10 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, (1976, as amended).

3. That the above named juvenile was less than seventeen (17) years of age when the
above mentioned acts occurred. o
WHEREFORE, the petitioner prays that the court defermine whether these allegations are true
and whether the juvenile is in need of the care, protection or discipline of the State. '

February 8, 2010 ' M 5444’)»47144

Charleston, South Carolina Petitioner U

VERIFICATION MUST BE ATTACHED

SCCA/481 (1/2010)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
VERIFICATION

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON

Anne B. Seymour, »being‘gmy‘swwﬁ,“says That SHE is the Petitioner: herein; that she has
read the foregoing petition and knows the contents thereof, that the same is true of her awn
knowledge or belief, except as to those matters therein stated to be on information and belief, and |

as to those matters she believes them to-be true.

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME

‘This B _ day of BAN.»Z) 2010

AN NN

Notary Public for@:uth Oatolina

My Commission Expires:_oYan) Qete |




STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE
D e ) NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON . .u)oss
e R T, )
'ANNE B. SEYMOUR, )

A JUVENILE

DERELL GRE

641

Address: ——y  UNLAWFUL PQSSESSION OF A FIREARM

Date of Birth:

DOCKET NO.: 2010—JU-10—\<£ %

A Child under Seventeen (17) Years of Age.

Anne B. Seymour, the petitioner, having sufficient knowledge to believe that a case has arisen

which invokes the juvenile jurisdiction of the court alleges:

That the above named juvenile resides in or was found in Charleston County.

2. That the names and addresses of the child's parents/guardiansicustodians are as
follows:
Name Relationship Address
Tamica Nelson , Mother ‘ - S8ame as Juvenile
3. The above named juvenile was a delinquént child, in that on or about February 5, 2010,

in Charleston County, South Carolina he did commit the offense of Unlawful Possession
of a Firearm in that he did knowingly possess a revolver, in violation of Section 16-23-20

of the South Carolina Code of Laws (1978, as amended).
4. That the above named juvenile was less than'seventeen (17) years of ége when the
above mentioned acts occurred. ' S ‘
WHEREFORE, the petitioner prays that the court determine whether these allegations are true

and whether the juvenile is in need of the care, protection or discipline of the State.

February 8, 2010 M
Charleston, South Carolina Petitioner

VERIFICATION MUST BE ATTACHED

SCCA/481 (1/2010)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ,
IFES -8 PM 35 VERIFICATION
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON |

T3

"COURT

Anne B. Seymour, &Wmmhe is the Pe’;itioner herein; that she has
read'the foregoing Petition and knows the contents therebf; that thé same is true of her own '
knowledge or belief, except as to those matters the-rein stated to be on information and belief, and-
as to those matters she believes them to be true. '

Anne B. SeymouU

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME .

This 8 day of}AMMO 12010 J

Qudie 8 Geene

Notary Public for @h Cdmlina

My Commission Expires: 10) 2 120\
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IN THE FAMILY COURT OF THE
NINTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON uues ¢
ANNE B. SEYMOUR, T

a5 =
A JUVENILE G o -
- JUVENILE PETITION

DERELL GREEN , .

Address: POSSESSION OF WEAPON DURING THE
COMMISSION OF A VIOLENT CRIME

Date of Birth: 4 .

A Child under Seventeen (17) Years of Age. DOCKET NO.: 2010-JU-10- )@&

Anne B. Seymour, the petitioner, having sufficient knowledge to believe that a case has arisen
which invokes the juvenile jurisdiction of the court alleges: ' '

1. That the above named juvenile resides in or was found in Charleston County.
2. That the names and addresses of the child's parents/guardians/custodians -are as
follows: R , |
Name Relationship " Address
Tamica Nelson . Mother Same as Juvenile
3. The above named juvenile was a delinquent child, in that on or about February 5, 2010,

in Charleston County, South Carolina he did commit the offense of Possession of
Weapon During the Commission of a Violent Crime in that he was in possession of a
firearm or visibly displayed what appears to be a firearm during the commission of a
violent crime or attempting to commit a violent crime, in violation of Section 16-23-490 of
the South Carolina Code of Laws (1976, as ‘amended). ‘

4, That the above named juvenile was less than seventeén (17) years of age when the
above mentioned acts occurred. - '

WHEREFORE, the petitioner prays that the court determine whether these allegations are true

and whether the juvenile is in need of the care, protection or discipline of the State.

February 8, 2010
Charleston, South Carolina etitioner

VERIFICATION MUST BE ATTACHED

SCCA/481 (1/2010)
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA A .
VERIFICATION’

COUNTY OF CHARLESTON

:MOFEB -8 PH 3:5L

Anne B. Seymour, being duly svi)?)rﬁ,_sa‘ysb&hiﬁﬁﬂg%e Petitioner herein; that she has read the
foregoing petition and knows the contents thereof; that the same is true of her own knowledge or bellef

except.as to those matters therein sé{{ nd belief, and to those matters she

believes them to be true.

Anne B. Seymo

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME

This 8 dayof?t%..;,z ' ,2010

S D Oy oen

Notary Public for So@arol@
My Commission Ekpires: u.\ 29 \ 34\9
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NORTH CHARLESTON POLICE DEPARTMENT

DE‘.FENDANT STATEMENT

e

B
/ 37216(4

4rt£zd

STATEMENT OF

HOME. ADDRESS

'BUSINESS ADDRESS

OCCPUATION. .. WL &k il

. (TIME)

P APy, A At ot S

/ua) QJ /// ///Z ‘/Mﬁ 740 62/7 74_@4 -

&v‘)‘ 95

/u:ui/z . é/f.:_r /rﬂu—,/ .rfuz-)//m\ M///'//,_,.
CCa . ef‘/‘:’{// . ‘,

Oo sizecrillstr o yolhot 2

- //ad/ 4’ PDaer 12~ /dyu/ ks Ll 0

I HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO
THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. 1| HAVE GIVEN THIS STATEMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN

PROVIDED , DR, MY STATEMENT.
wirness: e £ (’/ \__/‘7 .

e 1 ML%’MM»

WITNESS:
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR l:IAVE HAD {T READ TO ME AND (T IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. )
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. |
HAVE GIV%EMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT. .

WITNESS 7/\z,2

WITNESS: | C) - SIGNATURE: X M ‘%w_(j
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1 HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD )T READ TOME ANDIT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. |
HAVE GIVEN TH! EMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.
WITNESS: &z

WITNESS: d SIGNATURE: Mm
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ YO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE |
HAVE GIV%EMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS / \ 27,2,

.4 .
WITNESS: (J SIGNATURE: -&MM
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t HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD 1T READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. |

HAVE GIVEN TH MENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS yd ( 2s2

WITNESS: . //7 SIGNATURE: M&Mﬂ._

N
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NORTH CHARLESTON POLICE DEPARTMENT,

DEFENDANT STATEMENT

. | gt -
STATEMENT OF "Dz,z»cz,c,c. J“"‘"”’" g&f 2
\ HOME ADDRESS .HOME PHONE

EMPLOYER m,,”"‘ A /‘464-— o BUSINESS ADDRESS

BUS. PHONE — — OCCPUATION Lrw 5250 2

THIS STATEMENT IS GIVEN Z./ 3’/ Bt £ (DATE) AT ')A/J;/Wu (FIME)

AA:@[’//C//#MJ a QJc/cc Q//v ’  (LOCATION)
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1 HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO
THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. | HAYE GIVEN THIS STATEMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN
PROYIDEDR A C OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS: w4 \ 27/2

WITNESS: SIGNATURE:
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1 HAVE READ THE FOREGO!NG STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD iT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. |
HAVE GIVEN TH ATEMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

e r.\‘{ 3 — ' ' ‘
’m"{!" <7LW k& (39 SIGNATURE: M—mﬂl——
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND (T IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. I‘ .
HAVE GIVEN THIS STATEMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

(5

SIGNATURE:
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT QR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TQ THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. §
HAVE GIVEN TH! EMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS: A A
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NORTH CHARLESTON POLICE DEPARTMEN
WITNESS STATEMENT.

STATEMENT OF g\!\ﬂ\ a0\ e 3 (AN \(‘\ S DATE OF BIRTH

BUS. ADDRESS

EMPLOYER

THIS STATEMENT IS IN REFERENCE TO «5 4 odlﬁzj&

- r — . .
WHICH OCCURS AT ﬁ /3’”4/ ’d 4 , ON OR ABOUT 2 S - (0
AT APPROXIMATELY _/_ﬂ HOURS, IN NORTH CHARLESTON, SOUTH CAROLINA.,

THIS STATEMENT IS GIVEN 2-5- (0 (DATE) AT 2. ?0?” (TIME), AT
“C 4 D . o e (LOCATION)
_Myedf Noog:e™, Noow. Covcy wes ;mll\\,\g fn Lerr T
HHZLLL ‘H/\\S lernﬂ«i W 2 4s W?/l{hr Jao§:: ('éu!/.;,‘
fo . SC[\.Q_T[ T @nN Knew “Wrosie " cowsn by Fe  pape
Mook Mnoqc “_name & Dacee\ Groen, No’oq e akd
ao M -M“Wo\j N\ Sc haol by gc‘H«(T. »A’M*L&' ‘
Qs pane 30 Gt wias WQW\‘\‘A‘) w : VS, - As we
was walitwe Adwrn - Pe sheeet (v&ouch“ \‘Q‘v
Wig S\\-‘.c\- _up cu\& S\\O\AJ&L AV.X o me
*-\r\c:&' N \'\«0‘& v W vQ‘M\&S. The pack X Qaw
Was. q \m\sﬁ.ﬁ Wond ‘4 ReCore e \(Q—\u&‘ WX ghot yp
we  caxd N ous . “hey yal went b s we gun,
Gsiced i Uo\/\ue Nou  00wmg w-Hh ﬁ«‘ﬂL _yim wan £ Leabl
b Gt a fhe ol uctl fuat He &M s bt Wt
_tJas hot Adeng b Scloof ﬁsO/aA/ hen e Qo{‘ c[o&‘é

| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. l
HAVE GIVEN THIS STATEMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS: 0. /‘ L)

wirwess orarons OCMCANE &ﬂ\{\ (§

1]
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| HAVE READ THE FOREGOING STATEMENT OR HAVE HAD IT READ TO ME AND IT IS TRUE AND CORRECT YO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. |
HAVE GIVEN THIS STAFT_ EMENT FREELY AND VOLUNTARILY AND HAVE BEEN PROVIDED A COPY OF MY STATEMENT.

WITNESS: O. fa. s

WITNESS: : . smmrruﬁs: :C)\(\C)\\O\\\\‘e Bﬁ&\.\\/\\(\g
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8437923114 MUSCStar North <x, ' 11:0%:25a.0m.  06-11~2009 214

i. MUSC Health

iy |

“|OPDCSUM* ‘ o DERELL
Institute of Psychiatry Admosn13i09 M:876658
§7 President St,, MSC 861, Charleston, $C 29426—8610
(843-792-9888} : Derell Green
Patient N
DISCHARGE SUMMARY N reeE
i Page 102
Eorm Orlginalion Date: 1/00 _ , PATIENT IDENTIFICATION LABEL
Version: 3 Yersion Date; 3/08
o Clinical Information for Referring and.Follow-up Agencies
Patient Namg _J€reil Green " Referred By 1eNtWOo0d MIddIe Schoo!

wate of Bich L ' Discharged To Home (Mother Tamica Nelson

Medical Recoid Number 876658 i o Address M
Admission Date 4/972009 i {

Discharge Uate 6/4/2009 - m .

REASON FOR ADMISSION 13 yo AAM referred to STAR due to chronle, escalating disruptive, oppositional, deflant, and
aggressive behaviors.

ADMISSION EVALUATION AND LABORATORIES ) .
Appearance [ Behavigr Well- Groomed/Cooperatlve

Mentaj Status on Admisslon: Ordentation Intact

Speech / Motor Normal/Normal . Mood/Affec( Euthymic/Full-Range

Thought Content and Process Appropriate/Goal-Directed

Concentration / Memory Grossly Intact __ Insight/ Judgment _Lmited S

Laboratory Results and Pertinent Physical Findings
Urine Drug Screen on assessment riegative; on 5/29/09 posltivé (>135) for cannabinolds

HOSPITAL COURSE (!mlude rationale for medication changes if applicable}
Dere![ had some trouble settling in upon admission. He was noted to be impuisive and hyperactive, “He had difficulty
ing.with requests and directions. He became openly defiant and threatening, reguiring time-out and securit:

'nterventIon o agsure safety. Staff worked with Derell to.develop-improved frustratfon tolerance-and coplng skills,

but hé continued to have-difficulty settling ohce ha becamé upset. His mother participated in family sesslons to
develop cansistency in consequences and rewards contingent upon behaviors. Derell exhibited behaviors consistent
with a diagnosis of ADHD, and medication options were discussed with him and his mother. Vyvanse was started at
50 mq, While he exhibited behavioral improvement, he had difficulty tolerating it due to significant nausea.
Medication was switched to Concerta 36 mg, which he tolerated well. It did appear to convey improvement in
mpuisivity, and he appeared more. able to sustain attention to tasks. While Derell exhibited short perinds of
improvement in oppositional befyaviors, he frequently reverted to verbal aggression and threats when he became

frustratad. A strict behavioral contract was develdped to focus Derell on the behaviors necessary to make progress.
While he responded well in-the short-term, Derell again reverted to negative behavlors, He ‘exhibited little
lan and his negative jnfluence

otlvation to make positive strddes inthe m, D et his violating his behavlo;
on peers' behavior, he . was discharged from the lans to transition to outpatient treatment. -

Condition on Discharge Sormewhat Improved, but requiring ongoung outpatient treatment

[J Inveluntarily Committed To
DISCHARGE DIAGNOSIS: Principal Diagnasis_Oppositional Deflant Disorder

Axisi _Oppositional Deflant Disorder Axisy  None |
ADHD, Combined Type Axis It None Current
Cannabls Abuse Axistv Moderate (legal, academic, interpersonal)
Axis\ . GAF 65
Attending Psychiatrist _"“1/3‘\’\-/\ s 6 tAy _ PageriD 14217 DatesTime 6/5/2009
iop_dc_dcsum . OTE 700063 Rev. 308 j4ive
' ’ el Taten  §fsliy pe

Jog 184 90734959
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S‘QUTH-CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE
: Unde;standing of Family Court Hitopoulus Order for the
General Sessions Court Waivei' E'valuation

INSTR UCTTONS This form is to be' completed by lhe Counzy Case Manager priorto cona’uctmg an interview with a
Juvenile regarding Evaluation far General Sessions Court Waiver when :}ze juvemle 's court order includes the protections
of State v. Hztopoulus 359 8.£.2d 747 (1983).

. Tuvenile Full Name: ,T%%u_ ey G\M%ata of Birth: - -_
Date: Q\)\\{ L07 _/'-LO\AD - . . Time: . :
Witness Name: __YYAN WAy WNUNE Tite _ Pruogaimion Ot T

‘This evailﬁatign has been ordered by the Court for the purposes of éséistmg the GCourt in detemﬁning
whether your case should be transferred to the Court of General Sessions (;s&dult Cduft), and whether
for the purposes. of criminal prosecution you' should be treated as af-adult. The Family Courf has:
issued an Order i n your case protectmg the use-of any oral or written commu'ncatxon that you have
with the psychologist related to your charges, m conjunction with this evaluatlon, as evidence agamst

~ you in any court proceeding other than the Wawer hearmg

THAVE READ, OR HAD READ.TO ME, THIS STATEMENT AND I UNDERSTAND THAT ANY
STATEMENT I MAKE TO THE PSYCHOLOGIST CONCBRNING MY CHARGES CANNOT BE
USED AGAINST ME IN ANY COURT HEARIN G, OTHER THAN THE WAIVER HEARING.

- I aim'willing 16 participate in this evaluation and answer the questions preserited to me. [ do not wish to talk to

my lawyer at this time. I understand and know what I am doing. No promises, threats, or induéements have

‘been made to me and no pressure or coercion of any kind has been used agamst me. ( (,)5@;5# < ou/ff*‘ o ‘ )

Juvenile’s Signature:

Parent/Guardian’s Signature: '

Attormey's ~Signat'ure:‘

Witnesses’ Signature:

Form C-2.28
annnR



STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONB 5 9
COUNTY OF Charleston )
STATE VS. ) INDICTMENT/CASE#: __2010GS1008133
Derell Green ) AWH:  K674491
AKA: Derell Green ) Date of Offense: _9/23/2010
Race: BLACK Sex: M Age: - ) §.C.Code § : 16-03-0010, 0020
DOB: B Sst: ) CDR Code #: __ 0116
Address: )
City,State,Zip: T 29405
DL#: e STDR: % SENTENCE SHEET
*CDL Yos[] No[] CMV Yes[] No[] Hazmat Yes[[] No[] .'
In disposition of the said indictment comes nOW the Defendant who was CONVICTED OF or [JPLEADS
TO: MURDER
in violation of § 16-03-0010, 0020 of the S.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0116
[J NON-VIOLENT VIOLENT | JSERIOUS  [(XIMOST SERIOUS [ JMandatory GPS(CSC " [J§17-25-45
w/minor 1st or Lewd Act)
The charge is: As Indicted, [ JLesser Included Offense, [ ]Defendant Waives Prescntment to Grand Jury. ) {dofendant’s initials)
The pleaj /awnh t Npgotiations or Recommendation, [] Negotiated Sentence, O Recommendation by the State.
DuRant, D. e SC Bar# Defendant Aftomey for Defendant SC Bar#
WHEREFORE, the Defendant is commited to the [ﬂtate Department of Corrections, {1 County Detention Center,
for a determinate term of ﬁ& days/mo [ under the Youthful Offender Act notto exceed years
and/or to pay a fine of § ; provided that upon the service of days/months/ycars and/or payment
of$ ; plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspended  probation for

months/years and su%'fgct 1o South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Pardon Services standard conditions of
probation, which are incorporated by reference.
(] CONCURRENT or [] CONSECUTIVE to sentence on: '

The Defendant is to be given credit for time served antgo S.C. Code § 24-13-40 10 be calculated and applied
by the State Department of Corrections. R s /0
(] The Defendant is to be placed on the Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to S.C. Code §17-25-135.

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 922,it is unlawful for a pérson convicted of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16-25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence ) to ship,transport,possess,or receive a firearm or ammunition.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:
{JRESTITUTION: [ ] Deferred [] Def. Watves Hearing [Jordered  PTUP
Total: $ plus 20% fec: $ - dayshours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: ObiainGED  [J
[] Set by SCDPPPS » Attend Voc. Rehab. or Job Corp.
, — : May serve W/E begining
Recipieat:  Substance Abuse Counscling 8
*Fine: ' $ Random Drug/Alcohol testing O
§ 14-1-206 (Assosaments 107.5 %) $ Fine may be pd. in equal, consecutive weekly/monthly
g l*l-g\l(Axl)gjfivs-:&mm)e) $100 S 1d0.00 pmts. of $ beginning
14-1-211(AX2) O) $100 $ . .
8 5652995 (DUT Asse csment) 512 S $ _ paid to Public Dgfender Fund
§ 56-1-286 (DUI Breath Test) s25 S Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Def/Prob) $500 5
§ 14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 §& 450
§ 14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 3
§ 50-21-114(BUI Breath Test Feo) '$50 S
§ 56-5-2942(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ca 5 [0 Appointed PD or appointed othes counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCIA Surchargo) 35 S g0 § 47.12 requires $500 be paid to Clerk
3%to County (if paid in installments) $ =».4p during probation.
TOTAL S 173390 '

, . Presiding Ju
Clerk of Court/ Deputy Clerk __a@ﬂ&a.uﬁdﬂm—- Judge Code: £
Court Revarter: Viviaa Cro 55 Qentance Nat ?/////
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. DBD_ 20100905043 - pockernNo. 2010GS1008153

WITNESSES
The State of South Carolina
North Charleston Police Department County of Charleston
AGENCY CASE NUMBER . COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
2010005347
DECEMBER 2010 TERM
ARREST WARRANT NUMBER
4491
ko749 THE STATE N
DATE OF ARREST ) ] /’9 _ ﬁ)n\ ':'_;'_, :/ Y )
September 23, 2010 ‘ .Y : '
ACT;; oxi.cmn JURY o DEI&ELL GREEN

DOB:
1 .B/M

B

Foreperson of Grand fyry ’ .
Date: il 1 , Indictment for
VERDICT MURDER

i ™

Gws 14y
/

‘ / J - .

&7/’ // j\w Wray S 3 fas)201)
Foreperson of Petit Jury ! Date: ) )
INDICT
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT

: )
COUNTY OF CHARLESTON )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened an December 6, 2010, the Grand Jurors of Charleston County
present upon their oath:

MURDER
. 67(’
That in Charleston County on or about February 5, 2010, with malice aforethought, DERRELL GREEN did kill and
murder Larry Maybank by means of shooting the victim with a handgun, and that Larry Maybank did die in
Charleston County as a proximate result thereof on February 5, 2010; in violation of Section 16-3-10 of the South

Carolina Code of Laws (1976) as amended.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in . made-a1

A

#D. BRUCE DURA
CHIEF DEPUTY SOLICITOR
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

-Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
be included by any of the parties- and not any other material and that this' Record on Appeal
complies- to- the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court cnmlud “Interim- GLHddllC(, ch,aldmg Pusonal Data Identifiers and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Fxlmgs -

December 12th, 2013

Robcrt I\/{ Dudck

Chief Appellate Defendet

South Carolifia Comimission on Indigént Defense
Division of Appellate Defense

PO Box 11589

Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589

(803) 734-1330

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLLANT
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Interim Guidance Regarding Personal Data Identifiers and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate: Court Filings.”

December'12th, 2013 : ‘ , 7% M

Robert M. Dudek
Chief Appellate Defender

South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense

PO Box 11589 '

Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589-

(803) 734-1330

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT



| T CRICINAL
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ;J CRITINAL

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS | % FAR ﬂfﬁ@
BEE 1 2 2013
SG Court o1 Appeals

Appeal from Charleston County

J. C. Buddy Nicholson, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

* THE STATE,

RESPONDENT,

DERELL GREEN,
APPELLANT

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2011-201486

~ CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

4.

- I certify that a true copy of the Record on Appeal in the above refe'rencéd case has been
served upon Alphonso Simon, Jr., Esquire, at Rembert Ijennis Building, 1‘000 Assembly ‘Stieet,
Room 519, Columbia, SC 29201 this 12th day of December, 2013.

Brandon Hall T
Administrative Specialist

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me
this 12th day of December, 2013.

B wley . (LS)

Notary Public for South Carolina -

My Commission Expires: _October 24, 2021 .



